SONADEZI CORPORATION SOCTALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
DONGNAT PAINT CORPORATION Independence - Freedom - Happiness

= e | LT
No: 01/BBH-5DMN/BHCBZ025

MEETING MINUTES
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS 2025

TERM 2025-2030
DONGNAL PAINT CORPORATION

- Company Name: DongMNai Paint Corporation.

- Address: Road 7, Bien Hoa I Industrial Park, An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa Ciry, Dong
Nai Provinece.

- Pursuant to Business Registration Certificate No. 3600431024, 11th amendment,
dated 23/10v2023, issued by the Department of Planning and Investment of Dong
MWai Province.

- Pursuant to the Charier of DongNal Paint Corporation, as amended and
supplemented by the General Meeting of Shareholders on 28/09/2023,

- Today, at 8:30 AM on 1&/04/2025, at DongNai Paint Corporation; address Road
7. Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park, An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province,
the 20235 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders was held - Term 2025-2030

MEETING CONTENT
L APPROVAL OF MEETING PROCEDURES:

1  Opening: 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders - the Sixth Term
General Assembly (2025-2030)

2 Introduction of participants:

- Representative of Sonadezi Corporation

- Board of Directors of DongNai Paint Corporation,

- Board of Supervisors of DongNai Paint Corporation.

- Bopard of Management of DongiNai Paint Corporation.

- Shareholders of the Company (List of attendees with signatures attached).

Signature Not Verified
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3 Report on the list of shareholders attending the General Meeting.
- Total number of voting shares: 3,036,436 shares.
- Total number of shareholders of the Company as of 04/03,/2025: 305 sharcholders.

- Total number of shareholders invited: 305 shareholders, representing 3,036,436
voting shares,

Total number of registered shareholders: 23 shareholders representing 2.619.078
shares, accounting for 86 26% of the total 3 036 436 shares.

L APPROVAL OF REGULATIONS, AGENDA, AND LIST OF CHAIR OF MEETING
BOARD, SECRETARIES, VOTE COUNTING COMMITTEE AT THE GENERAL
MEETING AND BALLOT COUNTING SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE.

1. Approval of the Meeting's working regulations:
- Mr. Nguven Van Linh presented the Meeting’s Rules of Procedure.
+ Number of shares in approve: 2.619.078 shares, accounting for 100%,
+ Mumber of shares in disapprove: (- shares, accounting for 0%,
+ Mumber of shares in abstaint: { shares, accounting for 0%%.
2. Approval of the Meeting Agenda:
- Mr. NMguven Pham Thuyen presented the Meeting Apanda.
+ Number of shares in approve: 2.619.078 shares, accounting for 100%,
+ Number of shares in disapprove: 0 shares, accounting for 0%,
+ Number of abstaint: 0 shares, accounting for (%
3. Approval of the list of the Chair of Meeting Board, including:

- Mr. Mguyen Pham Thuyen - Chairman of the Board of Directors — Chairperson
of the General Meeting.

- Mr. Nguyen Duc Nhien - Viee Chairman of the Board of Directors - Member
- Mr. Dao Dinh De - Member of the Board of Directors - Member
+ Number of shares in approve: 2.619.078 shares, representing 100%.
+ Number of shares in disapprove: 0 shares, representing (9%,
+ Mumber of shares in abstain: O shares, representing 0946,
d, Approval of the list of Meeting Secretaries:
- Mr. Mgwyen Van Linh
+ Mumber of shares in approve: 2.619.078 shares, represeniing 100%.
+ Number of shares in disapprove: 0 shares, representing (%%,
+ Number of shares in abstain: ) shares, representing 0.
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5. Approval of the list of Vote Counting Committee members:
- Mr. Nguyen Ngoc Tuyen - Head of the Board
- Mr. Nguyen Xuan Truong - Member
- Mr. Cao Chu Hien - Member
+ Mumber of shares in approve: 2.619.078 shares, representing 103094,
+ Number of shares in disapprove: U shares, representing (%%,
+ Mumber of shares in abstain: 0 shares, representing (95,

6. Approve the list of the Ballot Counting Supervisory Committee
- Mr. Truong Cong Den - Head of the Commitzee.
- Mr, Trinh Thanh Nghi - Committee Member
+ Number of shares in approve: 2.619.078 shares, representing [{HP4,
+ Number of shares in disapprove: 0 shares, representing 0%,
+ Mumber of shares in abstain; 0 shares, representing 0%,

HL MATTERS REPORTED AND DISCUSSED AT THE GENERAL MEETING:

1. Mr. Nguyen Due Nhien — Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors,
General Director.

- Report on business production ectivities and management in 2024 and the
business production plan for 2025 by the Board of Managements (Keport attached).

- Proposal for profit distribution, fund allocation, and dividend payment in 2024
(Proposal attached).

- Proposal for profit distribution, fund allocation, and dividend payment in 2025
{Proposal attached).

- Proposal for the audited 2025 financial statements (Proposal attached).
2, Mr. Nguyen Pham Thuyen - Chairman of the Board of Directors.

- Repoart on the summary of activities for 2024, direction for 20235, and the results
of the 5th term (2020-2025) activities, along with the direction for the 6th term (2025-
2030) of the Board of Directors (Report attached),

- Proposal for amending and supplementing the Company's Charter, intemnal
regulations on corporate povernance, and the operating regulations of the Board of
Directors {Report attachad).

- Proposal for the dismissal of members of the Board of Directors (BOD) and the
Board of Supervisors (BOS) of the 5th term (2020-2025) and the introduction of
personnel for the election of new members for the BOD and BOS of the 6th term (2025-
20307 (Report attached).




3. Mr. Dao Dinh De- Member of the Board of Directors.

- Proposal for the settlement of salaries and bonuses for the Beard of Directors,
Board of Supervisors, Person in charge of Corporate Governance, and Persen in charge
of Information Disclosure in 2024 (Proposal attached).

- Proposzal for salaries and bonuses for the Beard of Directors, Board of
Supervisars, Person in charge of Corporation Governance, and Person in charge of
Information Disclosurein 2025 (Proposal attached).

4. Ms. Hoynh Thi Thanh Huong — Chief Accountant: Proposal for the audited
2024 financial statements (Proposal attached).

5. Ms. Dang Le Bich Phuong— Head of the Board of Supervisors: Report from
the Board of Supervisors evaluating the management and operational performance of the
Board of Directors and the Board of Management in 2024 - Evaluation of the Company’s
business operations and the activities of the Board of Supervisors for the Sth term (2020-
2025} (Report attached).

IV. COMMENTS AND STATEMENTS AT THE GENERAL MEETING:
1. Shareholder's authorized representative: M/ Ms.

2. The Chair of Meeting Board answered shareholders' guestions: The Chair
of Meeting Board answered the sharcholders' questions, and the shareholders
completely agreed and did not ask any further questions.

Y. CONTENTS APPROVED AND PASSED:

I. The General Meeting of Shareholders approved the 2024 Production,
Business and Management Results.
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+ Mumber of shares in approve: 2,619,078 shares, accounting for: 100%;,
+ Number of shares in disapprove: 0 shares, accounting for: 09%.




1.

+ Mumber of shares in absfain: () shares, accounting for: (%4,

The General Meeting of Sharcholders approved the 2024 Production and Business
Plan.

- Total output value; VIND 325,181 million

- Total revenue: VIND 114,000 mallion

- Budget contribution: VIND 8,000 million

- Profit {after tax): VIND 7,748 million

- Average salary income; YND 10.5 million

- Expected dividend payout: 15%/par value.

- Total cutput: 12,400 tons
+ MNumber of shares in approve: 2.619.078 shares, accounting for: 10084,
+ Number of shares in disapprove: 0 shares, accounting for; 096,
+ Number of shares in abstain: U shares, accounting for: 094,

The General Shareholders' Meeting approves the Report on the summary of
activities for 2024, the direction for 2025, the results of the Board of Directors'
activities for the 5th term (2020-2025), and the direction for term VI (2025-
2030).

F Wumber of shares in approve: 2.619.078 shares; accounting for; 100%,
+ Number of shares in disapprove: [ shares, accounting for: 0%,
+ Number of shares in abstain: 0 shares, accounting for: 0%.

The General Meeting of Shareholders approved the audited 2024 Financial
Statements, including the following contents:

- Balance sheet

- Production and business performance report

- Cash flow statement

- Notes to the financial statements
+ Number of shares in approve: 2.619,078 shares, accounting for: 100%.
+ Mumber of shares in disapprove: 0 shares, accounting for; 0%,
+ Number of shares in abstain: 0 shares, accounting for: 0%,

The General Sharcholders' Meeting approves the Report from the Board of
Supervisors on the management and operational performance of the Board
of Directors and the Board of Management in 2024 - Report evaluating the
Company’s business operations and the activities of the Board of Supervisors
for term V {2020-2025).




+ Mumber of shares in approve: 2.619.078 shares, achieving a ratio of; 100%,

+ Number of shares in disapprove: [ shares, achieving a ratio of: (%,

+ Mumber of shares in abstain: ) shares, achieving a ratio of: 0%,

6. The General Meeting of Shareholders approved the profit distribution, fund
allocation, and dividend payment for 2024,

- The General Meeting of Shareholders approved the 2024 dividend payment rate
of 15%/par value. The company has made an interim dividend payment of 5%/par value
and will pay &n additional 10%4/par value.

- The General Meeting of Shareholders approved the profit distribution and fund
allocation for 2024,

NO. CONTENT w | PAT CASH (d)
I | Charter capital 30.364.360.000
IT | 2024 Business Results
1 | Revenue from sales and service provision 119.647.971.540
2| Profit after tax for fund allocation & dividends 8.849.948.307
Il | Total fund allocation 3.878.477.772
| 1 | Development investment fiind 25% 2.212.487.077
| 2 Reward fund &% T07.995.865
3 | Benefit fund 5% | 442497415
4 | Social-community fund 2% 176,998 966
| 5 | Management Board bonus % | 176,998,966
" 6 | Management Board bonus (Employces) 1% 88.499 483
4 Bonus for Board of Dircctors & Board of
Supervisors % T3.000.000
[V | Remaining profit after fund allocation 4.971.470.535
v Remaining profit from 2023 carried
forward 8811172806
VI | Total remaining profit (TV+V) 13.782.643.341
VII | Dividends 18% 5.465.584.800
VIII | Remaining profit carried forward to 2025 8.317.058.541

+ Mumber of shares in approve: 2.619.078 shares, achieving a ratio of; 100%.

+ Number of shares in disapprove:  shares, achieving a ratio of: 0%.

+ Mumber of shares in abstain: 0 shares, achieving a ratio oft 0%,

7. The General Meeting of Shareholders approved the propesal for profit
distribution, fund allocation, and dividend payment for 2025,

- The General Meeting of Shareholders approved the proposed 2025 dividend
payment tate of 13%/par value,




= The General Meeting of Shareholders approved the profit distribution and fund
allocation for 2023,

NO. Content “PL Cash (d)
1 | Charter capital 30.364.360.000
Il | Bosiness Results
1| Profit before tax 9.500.000.000
2 | Profit after tax (corporate income m@x 20%) T.600. 0000
| 11 | Total Funds Allocation 3.268.000.000
1 | Development Investment Fund 25% | SO0 O, D00
2 | Rewurd Fund &% GO8. 000,000
3 | Benefit Fund 5% 380.000.000 )
4 | Social - Community Fund 2% | 152000000 | i
5 | Board of Managements Bonus 2% | 132,006,000 | '.-.'r:T'F
6 | Management Board bonus (Employees) 194 T6.000.000 ‘E;h'*'
IV | Remaining profit after fund allocation 4332000000 ‘GI‘:‘
V | Hemaining profit from 2024 carried forward 3.317.058.541 —
V1 | Total remaining profit (IV+V) 12.649.058.541 ==
VI | Dividends 15% | 4.354.654.000
VIII | Remaining profit carried forward to 2025 8.094.404.541

Directors, Board of Supervisors, Person tn charge of corporate governance, and Person in
charge Information Disclosure with 5% of the pre-tax profit exceeding the plan, drawn
from after-tax profic

+ Number of shares in approve: 2.619.078 shares, achieving a ratio oft 100%.

+ Number of shares in disapprove: () shares, achieving a ratio oft 0%,

+ Mumber of shares in abstain: 0 shares, achieving a ratio of: 0%,

8. The General Meeting of Sharcholders approved the list of 3 audit firms i
recommended for consideration to sign contracts to andit the company's 2024
financial statements and authorized the Board of Dvirectors to select 1 aundit
firm from the list to conduct the 2025 financial statement awdit,

+ Number of shares in approve: 2.619.078 shares, achicving a ratio of: 100%.
+ Number of shares in disapprove: [ shares, achieving a mtio of; (%
+ Mumber of shares in abstain: 0 shares, achieving a mtio of: (%,

9. The General Sharcholders' Meeting approves the amendments and
supplements to the Company’s Charter, internal regulations on corpoerate
governance, and the operating regulations of the Board of Directors.
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+ Number of shares in approve: 2.619.078 shares, achieving a ratio of: 100%.
+ Mumber of shares in disapprove: 0 shares, achieving a ratio of: (%,
+ Mumber of shares in abstain: U shares, achieving a ratio of: 0%,

10, The General Meeting of Sharcholders approved the report on the settlement
of salaries and bonuses for the Board of Directors, Board of Supervisors,
Person in charge of corporate governance, and Person in charge Information
Diselosure for the 2024 business performance resulis.

1. Salaries ard bonuses of the Board of Directors, Board of Supervisers, Person in
charge of corporate governance, and Person in charge Information Disclosure:

———

No Content YND
1 | = Board of Directors (339464, (00
2 | - Board of Supervisors 243.984. M)
3 ;:;-;:2:!:::];?5?':3 |::If r:;n rporate governance + Ferson in charge T 488 D00
Total | . 950.936.000

2. Bonuses for the Board of Directors, Board of Supervisors, Person in
charge of corporate governance, and Person in charge Information Disclosure are
5% of the pre-tax profit exceeding the plan and drawn from after-tax profit.

- Planned pre-tax profit for 2024: YND 9.685.00.000

- Actual pre-tax profit for 2024: VND 11.156.440.4 13

- Actual profit exceeded the plan; YINIY 1.471.440.413

- Dreduction of 5%/profit exceeding the plan: YINI 73,000,000
+ Number of shares in approve: 2.619.078 shares, achieving a ratio of: 100%,
+ Number of shares in disapprove:  shares, achieving a ratio of: 0%,
+ Number of shares in abstain: 0 shares, achieving a ratio of: 0%,

11. The General Meeting of Shareholders approves the salaries, bonuses, and
performance rewards from production and business activities of the Board of
Directors’ members, Board of Supervisors, the person in charge of corporate
governance, and person in charge information disclosure for the yvear 2025,

- Remuneration for the Board of Directors:
+ Chairman of the Board of Directors: 7,000,000 Y NDYmonth
+ Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors: 6,500,000 VNI¥month
+ Board of Directors” members: 6,000,000 VND/month
+ Person in charge of corporate governance: 2,000,000 Y NIV month
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- Remuneration for the Board of Supervisors and person in charge Information
Disclosure:

+ Head of the Board of Supervisors: 6,000,000 VNIVmonth
+ Board of Supervisors’ members: 3,000,000 VNImonth
+ Person in charge Tnformation disclosure: 2,500,000 VND¥moenth

- This is the actual remuneration paid, personal income tax is deducted before this
level. The application period starts from January 2025 until the General Meeting of
Sharcholders has a resolution to change it

- Bonuses for the Board of Directors” members, Board of Supervisors, the person
in charge of corporate governance, and , the person in charge information disclosure when
pre-tax profit exceeds the 2025 plan.

- To motivate and encourage the Board of Directors’ members, Board of
Supervisors, the person in charge of corporate governance, and |, the person in charge
information disclosure in directing production and business to exceed the st ploan,
Propose to the General Meeting of Shareholders to add 3%/pre-tay profit excesding the
plan and deduct from afier-lax profir.

+ Mumber of shares in approve: 2.6192.078 shares, achieving a ratio of: 100%,
+ Number of shaves in disapprove: 1 shares; achieving a ratio of: %%,
+ WNumber of shares in abstain: 0 shares, achieving a ratio of: (%%.

VL DISMISSAL OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
MEMBERS FOR TERM V (2020 — 2025) AND ELECTION OF BOARD OF
DIRECTORS AND BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEMBERS FOR TERM VI
(2025 — 2030).

1. The Organization Commiftee approves the proposal for the dismissal of

members of the Board of Directors and members of Board of Supervisors for
term V (2020 - 2025) (Proposal attached).

1.1 Dismissal members of the Board of Directors for term V (2020 — 2025):
I. Mr. Nguyen Pham Thuyen.
2. Mr. Nguyen Due Mhien.
3. Mr. Dao Dinh De,
4. Mr. Tran Trung Kien.
5. Ms. Meuven Yu Thi Hanh,
+ MNumber of shares in approve: 2.619.078 shares, achieving a ratio oft 100%,
+ Number of shares in disapprove; [ shares, achieving a ratio of: 0%.

+ Number of shares in abstain: 0 shares. achieving a ratio of: 0%,
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1.2 Dismissal members of Board of Supervisors for term V (2020 - 2025):
l. Ms. Dang Le Bich Phuong.
2. Ms. Trinh Thi Ngoc Huong.
3. Mis, Bui Thi Thuy Licn.

+ Number of shares in approve: 2.619.078 shares, achieving a ratio of: 100%.

+ Number of shares in disapprove: D shares, achieving a retio of: %%,
+ Number of shares in abstain: 0 shares, achieving a ratio of: 0%.

2. The Organization Committee approves the propesal for the nomination list
for the election of members of the Board of Directors and members of Board
of Supervisors for term VI (2025 - 2030) {(with the attached proposal).

2.1 List of nominees for members of the Board of Directors:

l.
2.

Ll

LET)

ivir. Dao Dinh De.

Ms. Vo WNeuven Thi Hanh.
pr. Mguyven Duc Mhien
M5, Dau Khanh Phuonz.
M. Mgusven Pham Thuven.

2.2 List of nominees for members of Board of Supervisors:

L.

M= Meuyen Thi Chung.

2. DMz, Trinh Thi MWgoc Huong.
3. BMs. Bui Thi Thuy Lien.

3, The Organization Committee approves the election regulations and

procedures (with the attached documents).

4. Election guidelines and voting process:

- The ballot counting committee and the supervisory committee work, and the voting

results {with the aftached vote counting minutes).

5. The Organization Committee announces the election results for the Board of

Directors and Board of Supervisors:

+ Voting resulis for the Board of Directors election:

MNo. Full Name Number of Votes Per:;“; Ag®
1 | Mr.Dac DinhDe 2.338.548 89,28
2 | Ms. Vu MNguven Thi Hanh 580,688 22,17
3 | Mr. Mguven Duc Nhien 3.820.845 145,89
4 | Ms. Dau Khanh Phuong 2.231.538 83,20
5 | Mr. Mguyen Pham Thuyen 4.112.541 157.02
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+ Voting results for the Board of Supervisors election:

M. Full Name Number of Votes PHE:;:; REE
1 | Ms. Nguyen Thi Chung 4.350.7¢41 166,12
2 | Ms, Trinh Thi Neos Huoagp 1.039.814 39,70
3 | Ms. Bui Thi Thuy Lien 2.464.541 94,110

6. The list of elected for the Board of Directors and Board of Supervizors for
term V1 {2025 - 2030):

+ Elected members of the Board of Directors:

L. Mr. Mguyven Pham Thuyen.
Mr. Neguyen Duc Nhien.
Mr. Dag Dinh De.
Ms. Dau Khanh Phuons.
M5 Vu Neguyen Thi Hanh.
Elected members of the Board of Supervisors:
Ma. Nguyen Thi Chung.
Ms_ Bui Thi Thuy Lien.
Ms. Trinh Thu Ngoc Huong,

Y1L APPROYAL OF THE MINUTES AND RESOLUTIONS OF THE GENERAL
MEETING.

The General Meeting of Shareholders unaninously approves all the contents of
the Minutes and Resolutions of the General Maeting.

+ Number of shares in approve: 2.619.078 shares, achieving a ratio oft 100%.

e e
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+ Number of shares in disapprove: 0 shares, achieving a ratio of: 0%,
+ Number of shares in abstain: 0 shares, achieving a ratio of: %%
VI CLOSING OF THE GENERAL MEETING

The General Meeting was successfully completed and closed at 11:15 a.m. on the
same day.
ON BEHALF OF THE ORGANIZING ON BEHALF OF THE SECRETARIAT

7 CQOMMITTEE HEAD OF DEPARTMENT
o bﬁfur—uzlﬁ%‘m“
f/::'m:-mﬁr"% -

|I| " qDH L#;ri'_.f.-l_-l.-r-h____ 52
\&mwﬁ NA i. 3) -

guyen Pham Thuyen MNguyen Yan Linh
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SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence - Freedom — Happinéss

SONADEZ] CORPORATION
DONGNAL PAINT CORPORATION

No: 02/NQ-SDN/DHCD2025 Dong Nai, April 18, 2025

RESOLUTION
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS 2025
VI TERM MEETING (2025-203()
DONGNAL PAINT CORPORATION

- Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises: 3% 2020/0H1 4 dated June 17, 2020 issued by
the National Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam.

- Purseamt to the Business Regisiration Certificate Mo, 3600431024, llth
grnendment, dated October 23, 2023 issued by Dong MNai Department of Planning
and Investment.

- Pursuant to the Charter of Organization and Operation of DongNai Paint Corporate
as amended and suppleménted by the General Meeting of Shareholders on
November 29, 2023,

- Pursuamt w0 the Minuotes of Meeting No: 01I/BBH-SDNAHCE2025, the 2025
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders - V1 Term Meeting (2025-2030) at 08:30
on 180472025, at DongMNai Paint Corporate, Eoad 7, Bien Hoa [ Industrial Park,
An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province, With 23 Sharcholders
attending out of a total of 305 Sharcholders of the Company, representing:
2.619.078 sharcs, accounting for: 86,26% of the total: 3,036,436 voting shares.
The General Meeting of Sharcholders unanimously approved the Resolution of the
Meeting with the following contents:

RESOLVES

ARTICLE 1. The General Meeting of Shareholders approves the Business
Production Resulis of 2024,

. , 2034 2024 i LrR Actualiplan | Acteal/LY
PG RS VNIT | PLAN | ACTUAL | ACTUAL (%) (%]
1| Toloupurvaue | MNET | 325081 | 333420 312,007 03 07
2 |Tomlrevenwe | " | 114000| 123,706| 125085 108 W
3| Ouiputofalltypes | Tom 12400 12,106 | 1,553 98 kDS |
Million ’
' (Pt |wgp | TAM) R R 2 i
. | Budget contribution | Million 5%
| ® |fpayebe) | wnp | 00| 3Mef 6361 = sl
Average salary F il
Rl il 10571 | 12,215 10,077 114 14|

o Approve voling rate: 100%:
ARTICLE 2. The General Meeting of Shareholders approves the 2025 Business
Production Plan.

- Total output valee : VIND 315,896 million
- Revenue : VD 114,000 million




- Budget contribution : VD 7,700 million

« Profit (after tax) : VND 7,600 million

- Average salary income : VIND 11,296 million
- Expected dividends : 15%/par value.

- Total output : 12,030 tons

= Approve voting rate: 100%
ARTICLE 3. The General Meeting of Shareholders approves the Summary Report
of 2024 Activities and 2025 Orientation and the Performance Results of the Board
of Directors for the ¥ Term (2020-2025) and Orientation for the VI Term (2015-
2030).

=  Approve voting rate: 100%

ARTICLE 4. The General Meeting of Shareholders approves the audited 2024
Financial Statements including the following contents.

- Balance Sheet

- Slatement of income

- Statement of Cash Flows

- MNotes to the financial statements

= Approve voting rate: 100%%
ARTICLE 5: The General Meeting of Sharcholders approves the Board of
Supervisors Heport on the managemenl and administration of the Board of
Directors and the Board of Management of the Company in 2024 - Report evaluating
the Company's business production activities and the activities of the Board of
Supervisors for the V Term (2020-2025).

=  Approve voling rate: 100%
ARTICLE 6. The General Meeting of Shareholders approves the distribution of
profits, allecation to funds, and pavment of 2024 dividends.

1. The General Meeting of Shareholders approved the 2024 dividend payout ratio
of 18%/par value, The company has made an interim dividend payment of 5%/par value,
paying an additional 13% par value,

2. The General Meeting of Shareholders approved the prefit distribution and
ailocation to Funds for 2024,

Mo, Items %IPAT . Amonnt {VND)
i [ Charter cnpﬁa‘i 30,364, 360,000
I | 2024 business production resulis
1 | Net revenue from sales and service provision. 116.647.971,540
PAT for allocation to funds and dividend
2 | distribution 8540 048 307
111 | Total allocation to funds . 1878477772
1 Development investment fund 23% 2,212 4B87.077
7 | Bonus and Reward fund - | 707,995,865




3 Welfare fund 2% 442 497 415
4 | Social-community activities fund 2% 176,998,966
s 5 Board of Management Bonus 2% | 76,998,966
| & | Board of Management Bonus (Employees) 1% 88,499 483
Bonus for Board of Directors & Board of
7 | Supervisors 5% 73,000,000
IV | Remaining profit after allocation to funds 4,971, 470,535
. Remaining profit carried forward form
Vojan3 B.BI11,172,806
¥1 | Total remaining profit (IV+V) 13,782,643,341
VI | Dividends _ &% 5,465,584, 800
VI | Remaining profit carried forward to 2025 8,317,058,541

= Approve voting rate: 100%

ARTICLE 7. The General Meeting of Shareholders approves the proposal for profit T

distribution, allocation to Fonds, and dividend payment for 2025. .-‘ ——
|. The General Meeting of Sharcholders approved the proposed 20235 dividend J'ErTl’

payout ratio of 15%/par value. H"lp:

2. The General Meeting of Shareholders approved the profit distribution and  “yg ya

allocation to Funds for 2025,

No. Items | % Plan | Amount (VND) |
I | Charter eapital 30,364,360,000
I1 | Business Results
1 Profit before tax gkiﬂ[hﬂd%wﬂ"
2 | Profit after tax {Corporate income tax 20%) T 600 OO, D

I | Total allocation to Funds 3,268, 00N, (M)
I | Development Investment Fund 25% 1,900, 0D, (0
2 | Bonus and Reward Fund 8% BOE, 000, (H)
3 | Welfare Fund 3% 80,000,000
4 | Secial-communily activitics fund 2% 152,000,000
5 | Board of Management Bonus 2% 52,000,000
& | Board of Management Bonus {Employees) 1% 76,000,000

IV  Remaining profit after fund allocation 4,332 000,000
V | Remaining profit carried forward from 2024 8,317,058,541

¥1 | Total remaining profit {TV+V) 12,649,058,541

VII | Dividends | 5% 4,554,654,000 |

YIII | Remaining profit carried forward to 2026 8,094.404,541

3. Propose to the General Meeting of Shareholders to reward the Board of Directors
and the Board of Supervisors 5% of the pre-tax profit exceeding the plan and deducted
from the after-1ax profit.

3



s Approve voting rate: 100%:
ARTICLE 8. The General Meeting of Shareholders approves the list of 3 andit firms
introduced for consideration to sign contracts io apdit the financial statements for
2025 and authorizes the Beard of Directors to select 1 audit firm from the Hst above
to audil the 2023 financial statements.

o  Approve voting rate: 100%
ARTICLE 9. The General Meeting of Shareholders approves the amendments and
supplements to the Company's Charter and internal regulations on corporate
governance and the operating regulations of the Board of Directors.

s  Approve voling rate: 100%
ARTICLE 10. The General Meeting of Shareholders approves the proposal o decide
on salaries and bonuses for the Board of Directors and Board of Sopervisors, the
person in charge of Corporate Governance, and the person in charge of information
disclosure about the effectiveness of business performance in 2024.

1. Salaries and benuses of the Board of Directors members, Board of Supervisors, the
person in charge of Corporate Governance, and the persen in charge of Information

Dyisclosure.

No. | liems Amount (WND) |
| | Board of Directors 639.464,000 |

2 | Beard of Supervisors 243.954,DUEJ

3 | Person in charge of corporate i

| governance + Person in charge of 76,488,000 |

| information disclosure !

| Total 959,936,000 |

2. The bonus for the Board of Directors members, Board of Supervisors, the persen
in charge of Corporate Governance, and the person in charge of Infermation
Mselosure.

- Pre-tax prefit plan for 2024: VNI 9,685,000,000

- Actual pre-tax profit for 2024: VND 11,156,440,413

- Profit exceeding the plan: VNI 1,471 440,413

- Deducting 5% of profit exceeding the plan: VND 73,000,000

= Approve voting rate: 100%

ARTICLE 11. The Géneral Meeting of Shareholders approves the salaries
and bonuses for the performance of business production activities of the Board of
Directors members, Board of Swpervisors, the person in charge of Corporate
Governance, and the person in charge of Information Disclosure for 2015

|. Remmeration of the Board of Directors:

+ Chairman of the Board of Directors: 7,000,000 VNDYmonth

+  Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors: 500,000 YINTVmonth
+ Board of Direclors” members: 6,000,000 YND/month

+  Person in charge of corporate povernance: 2,000,000 VNI¥month

2, Remunération of the Board of Supervisors and Information Discloszer:
+  Head of the Board of Supervisors: 6,000,000 VNDYmonth




+  Boeard of Supervisors” members: 3,000,000 VNT¥month
+ Information Discloser: 2,500,000 VIND/month

This is the actual remuneration paid, personal income tax is deducted before this
amount. The application period starts from 012025 until the General Meeting of
Shareholders decides to change it.

3. Cash bonuses for the Board of Directors, Board of Supervisors, the person in
charge of Corporate Governance, and the person in charge of Information
[¥isclosure when pre-1ax profit exceeds the 2025 plan,

To motivate and encourage the Board of Directors, Board of Supervisors the person
in charge of Corporate Governance, and the person in charge of Information Disclosure
in directing business productionbio exceed the set plan. The General Meeting of
Sharehelders is proposed 1o allocate an additional $%/pre-tax profit exceeding the plan,
deducted from afier-tax profit.

= Approve voting rate: 100%

ARTICLE 12. The General Mecting of Shareholders approves the dismissal of
members of the Board of Directors and members of the Board of Supervisors for
term V (2020-2025).

1. Dsmissal of members of the Board of Directors,
1. Mr. Nguyen Pham Thuven.
2. Mr. Nguyen Duc Nhien.
3, Mr. Dao Dinh De
2. Mr. Tran Trung Kien
5. Ms. Vu Nguven Thi Hanh
= Approve voting rate: 100%
2. Dismissal of members of the Board of Supervizsors.
l. Ms. Iang Le Bich Phuong
2. Ms. Trinh Thi Ngoc Huong
3. M. Bui Thi Thuy Lien.
*  Approve voting rate: 100%

ARTICLE 13. The General Meeting of Shareholders approves the election results of
members of the Board of Directors and members of the Board of Supervisors for
term V1 {2025-2030).

1. List of elected members of the Board of Directors;
1. Mr. Nguven Pham Thuven.
2. Mr. Npuyven Due Nhien.
3. Mr. Do Dinh De.
4. Ms. Dau Khanh Phuong,
5. Ms Wu Nguyen Tha Hanh.
{with the attached vole counting minufes),
2. List of elected members of the Board of Supervisors:
|, Ms Nguyen Thi Chung,
2. Ms. Bui Thi Thuy Lien.




3. Ms Trinh Thi Ngee Huong.
[with the afached voiz couniing minutes),

ARTICLE 14: The General Meeting of Shareholders approves the Resolution and
assigns the Board of Directors to be responsible for organizing and directing its

implementation. This Resolution takes effect from the date of signing.
*» Approve voting rate: 100%
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L. 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders - the Sixth Term General Assembly
(2025-20030) on 18/04/2025 elect the Board of Directors:
2. List of nominees for members of the Board of Directors:
|. Mr. Dao Dinh De.
Ms. Vu Mguyen Thi Hanh
Mr. Nguyen Duc Nhien

R

Ms. Dau Khanh Phuong.
5. Mr. Npuven Pham Thuven.
3. Approval of the list of Vote Counting Committee members:
- . Nguyen Neoc Tuyen - Head of the Board
= v, Meuyen Xuan Trong - Member
- Mr. Cao Chu Hien — Member
4. Approve the list of the Ballot Counting Supervisory Committee.
- Mr, Truong Cong Den - Head of the Committee.

- Mr. Trinh Thanh Mghi - Committee Member
5. Total number of registered shareholders: 23 sharcholders representing 2.619.078 shares,
accounting for 86,26%.
6. Total number of ballods issued: 23 ballots representing 13,005,390 shares.

« Mumber of votes received: 23 ballots representing 13,084,160 shares. (There are 11,230
ballots, shareholders did not vote for the candidate).

- Number of valid votes: 23 ballots representing 13.084. 160 shares.
- Mumber of invalid votes: 0 ballot, Corresponding number of votes: 0 voles.

7. Voting results for the Board of Directors eleclion:

M. Full Mame MNumber ui"'r’ntes Percentage (%)

I | Mr. Dao Dinh De 2338548 50,28

| |




Wir. Nguyen Pham Thuyen

2 | Ms. Vu Nguyen Thi Hanh 5B0.683 22,17
3 | Mr. Nguyen Duc Nhien 3.820.845 145,89
4 | Ms. Dau Khanh Phuong 2.231.538 85,20
3 4.112.541 157,02

8. Elected members of the Board of Directors:
[. Mr. Nguyven Pham Thuyen.

2. Mg, Nguyen Duc Mhien.

3. Mr. Dao Dinh De.

4. Ms. Dau Khanh Phuong.

5. Ms. Vu Nguyen Thi Hanh

Elected to the Board of Dirgctors of Dong Mai Paint Joint Steck Company for term VI

(2025-2030),

The minutes are made in 2 copies, at 180:45 a.m. on April 18, 2023,

On behalf of the presidium

Mguyen Pham Thuyen

Meguyen Ngoc Tuyen

Ballot Counting Supervisory Committee

Truong Cong Den

Trinh Thanh Nghi

Cn behalf of the election committee
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1. 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders - the Sixth Term General Assembly
(2025-2030) on 18/04/2025 clect Board of Supervisors:

2. List of nomineces for members of Board of Supervisors:
l. Ms. Npuyen Tht Chung.
2, M3, Bui Thi Thuy Lien.
3. Ms, Teinh Thi Ngoce Huong,
3, Approval of the list of Vote Counting Committee members:
= Mr. Mpuyen Npoe Tuyen - Head of the Hoard
- Mr. Nguyen Xun Truong - Member
- Mr. Cao Chu Hien — Member

4, Approve the list of the Ballot Counting Supervisory Committee.
- Mr. Truong Cong Den - Head of the Commiliee.
- Mr, Trinh Thanh Nghi - Commities Member

5. Total number of registered sharcholders: 23 shareholders representing 2618078 shares,
gecouniing for 86,26%.

6. Total number of ballots issued: 23 batlols representing 7,857,234 shawes,

- Mumber of voies received: 23 bullots representing 7.855,006 shares, (There are 2118 ballots,
shareholders did not vate for the candidate).

- Mumber of valid votes: 23 ballots representing | LORA, 160 shares,

- Wumber of invalid votes: 0 ballot, Comesponding number of voles; (F votes.

7. Yating results for the Board of Supervisors:

S e
M. Full Name Number of YVoles i ﬂ-}':;i";““'

|| Ms. Nguyen Thi Chung - [ 4.350.741 16,12
"2 | Ms. Trinh Thi Ngoc Huong 1039814 19,70
3 | Ms. Bui Thi Thuy Lien )  2.464.541 94,10




8. Elected members of the Board of Supervisors:
[, Ms. Neuyen Thi Chung.

2. Ms. Bui Thi Thuy Lien.

3. Ms. Trinh Thi Ngoc Huong,

Elected to the Board of Supervisorsol Dong Nai Paint Joint Stock Company for lerm VI
(2025-2030).

The minuies are made in 2 copies, al 10:45 aom, on Apidl 18, 2025,

On behall of the presidinm On behall of the clection commitiee

Mguyen Pham Thuyen Meuyen NMpoe Tuyen

Ballot Connting Supervisory Committee

Troong Cong Den Trinh Thanh Mghi



SONADEZ] CORPORATION SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETMNAM
DONGNAI PAINT CORFORATION Independence - Freedom - Happiness
No: 0172025/ TTe-HDQT Dang Nai, April 18, 2023
PROPOSAL

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS 2025

VI TERM MEETING (2025-2030)

Regarding: Agenda of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders

VI Term Meeting (2025-2030)

Time: To commence at B:30 AM on April 18, 2025,

Venue: Head office of Dongl¥ai Paint Corporation. No. 7 Street, Bien Hea | Industrial

Park, An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province.

Time Caontent In charge |
i . . Welcome th]egates a:|1d Sharcholders o _ Ol
 T30-830 | - Check the list of registered shareholders; distribute meeting | Committee
. materials; voting ballots, election baltots.
I - Report on the list of registered shareholders.
Rag o gas | Opening of the Meeling, declaration of reasons, miroduction | Organizing
il of delegates (if any). Committes
- Approve the Meeting's warking regulations.
- Requesting voling opinions
- Introduce the report and elect the Chair of Meeting Board, c P
G Secretary, Vote Counting Commitiee, and Voie Counting M}L?tri:g
Ao isory Board.
Sypconory : Board
- Approve the Meeting's agenda,
- Reguesting voting opinions on each iem.
1
- Report on business production activities, management and
sdministration in 2024 and the 2025 business production Chisif of
B85 .0.15 plan of the Board of Managements. I"-'I;Etrit?g
| ' - Report summarizing the 2024 activities - 2023 directions |  peard
and the results of term V (2020-20235) - Directions for term
VI (2025-2030) of the Board of Directors.
Chief
9:15-9:20 [ - Report on the audited 2024 Financial Statemens. y
- Repont of the Board of Supervisors evaluating the
9:20 - 9:30 menagement and administration of the Board of Directors, B'Wfd: aof
Board of Management in 2024 - Evaluating the business | SUpervisors
production situation of the Company and the activities of
the Board of Supervisors for term V' (2020-2025).
9:30 - 45 Report on profit distribution, fund allocation, and dividend ;‘Li':i::
pavment in 2024, Board




Repart an profit distributics, fund allocation, and dividend
payment in 2025
Report on the selection of an awditing unit for the 2025
financial statements.
Report on amending and supplementing the Company's
Charter, Intemnal regulations on corperate governance, and
Regulaticns an the operation of the Board of Directors.
Report on the setilement of salarses and bonuses of the
Board of Directors, Board of Supervisors, Person in charge Chairof
9:45-10:00 of corporate governance, and person in charge mformation | Meeting
disclosure in 2024, Board
Report on the approval of remuneration and bonuses for the
Board of Directors, Board of Supervisors, Person in charge
of corporate governance, and person in charge information
disclosure for the year 2025,
Report on the dismissal of members of the Board of
Drirectors and Board of Supervisors for term V (2020-20235)
and introduction of candidates for election to the Board of
Directars and Board of Supervisors for term V1 (2025- —
10:00-10:45 2030), EE et
Conduct the election of members of the Board of Directors
and Board of Supervisors for term V1 (2025-20307.
The Vote Counting Committee reads the minutes of the
vole counting and election results.
While The Vete Counting Committee is counting the votes, Craani
shareholders will take a break on-site (tea, frait, and drinks C::En mimf
will be served).
Report on discussion énd voling to approve the issues
reported at the General Meeting.
10451115 + Discussion by shareholders at the General Meeting on | Chair of
' the issues reporied by the Organizing Committee, Meeting
+ Voting on the contents reported at the General Board
Meeting,
Secretary
o Approval of the draft Resolution of the General Meeting. E{]‘a"_ of
i Approval of the Minutes of the General Meeting. iy
Adjoumment of the General Meeting. Organizing
Commitiee
ON ANIZING COMMITTEE

\

R Ngien Pham Thuyen

e



SONADEZI CORPORATION SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

DONGNAI PAINT CORPORATION [ndependence - Freedom - Happiness
No: 01/2025/QC-HBEQT Dong Nai, April 18, 2025
WORKING REGULATIONS

2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
VI TERM GENERAL MEETING (2025-2030}
1. PURPOSE.
~ Ensure the principles of transparency, faimess, and democracy.

- Facilitate the organization and suceessful implementation of the 2025 Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders - VI Term General Meeting (2025-2030). The General
Meeting issues appropriate resolutions to ensure the sustainable and stable
development of the Company.

1. AUTHORIZATION TO ATTEND THE GENERAL MEETING OF
SHAREHOLDERS.

— Sharcholders may authorize their representatives to participate in the Company's
affuirs within the scope of their authority, The authorized person is not necessarily a
shareholder of the Company. The autherized person may exercise the rights within the
scope of authorization in accordance with the Jaw and the Company's Charter. The
authorized person may re-authorize a third party. The re-authorized person musi
present the original authorization document of the shareholder.

~ The appointment of representatives and authorization, change of representatives and
authorized persons must be made in writing in accordance with the following
regulations:

a- If the shareholder is an individual, the authorization document must be signed by
that zhareholder and the authorized person, along with relevant persenal papers and
confirmation from & competent state agency (if any).

b- 1f the shareholder is a legal entity/orgamzation, it must be stamped and signed by
the legal representative of that legal entity/organization.

¢- Sharcholders may refer to the sample authorization to attend the General Mesting
posted on the Company's website: www, dengnaipaint.com. v,

1. ORDER OF THE GENERAL MEETING.

1. All shareholders attending the meeting must dress formally. Comply with the
regulations of the Organizing Committee of the meeting.

2. When entering the General Meeting room, shareholders must sit in the correct
position or area as prescribed by the Organizing Comminee. Absolutely comply with the
arrangement of the Organizing Committee.




3. No smoking in the General Meeting room, the Organizing Committee has
arranged a separate smoking arca.

4. Do not talk privately, do not use mobile phones during the General Meeting. All
mobile phones should be tamed off or put on silent mode.

IV. YOTING TO APPROVE MATTERS AT THE GENERAL MEETING:
l. Voting principles.

All matters on the agenda of the General Mecting (except for matters approved by
secret ballot) are approved by publicly obtaining the votes of all shareholders by Voting
slip according to the number of shares owned and represented.

Each shareholder is issued a Voting ballot, which states the shareholder code, the
number of shares entitled to vote {owned and authorized) of the sharcholder and is affixed
with the seal of DongNai Paint Corporation.

2, Voting method.

Shareholders vote (in order: approved, disapproved, abstain) on a matter by raising
their ballots.

V. EXPRESSING OFPINIONS AT THE GENERAL MEETING.
I. Principles of expressing opinions.

Sharcholders attending the General Meeting who wish to express their opinions
must register the content of their statement by raising their voting slip and obtaining the
consent of the Presidium.

2, Method of expressing opinions.

Shareholders should express their opinions concisely and focus on the key issues o
be discussed, in accordance with the agenda of the General Meeting. The Presidium will
arrange for shareholders to speak in the order of registration and will address shareholders'
QuESIIONS.

VI. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE PRESIDIUM.

1. Conduct the General Meeting in accordance with the agenda and regulations
approved by the General Meeting. The Presidium shall work on the principle of democratic
centralism and decide by majority vote,

2. Guide the General Meeting in discussions and obtain votes on matters within the
agenda of the General Meeting and related matters throughout the General Meeting.

3. Resolve issues arising during the General Meeting,
VII. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE GENERAL MEETING SECRETARY.

1. Record fully and trathfully all the proceedings of the General Meeting and matters
approved or noted by the General Mesting,

2, Draft the Minutes of the Meeting and Resolutions on matters approved at the
General Meeting.




VI RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BALLOT COUNTING COMMITTEE.

1. Determine the voting results of shareholders on matters approved at the General
Meeting,

2. Notify the Secretariat of the voting results.

3. Review and report to the General Meeting decisions on cases of violation of
voting regulations or complaints regarding voting results,

GANIZING cﬂMMITTEEpI’&_-
. __'_,_,.,-r""
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SONADEZI CORPORATION SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
DONGNAI PAINT CORPORATION Independence - Freedom - Happiness

No: 022025/ TTr-HRQT Dong Nai, April 18, 2023

PROPOSAL
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS 2025
VI TERM MEETING {2025-2030)
Regarding: Introduction of the Chair of Meeting Board, Secretary, Vote Counting
Committee, and Yole Counting Supervisory Board

- Pursuant to the Enterprise Law: 592020/0H14 dated 17062020 issued by the National
Assembly of Socialist Republic of Vietnam.

- Pursuant to the Charter of Dongiai Paint Corporation, amended and supplemented on
28092023,

- Pursuant to Resolution No 4272025 NOQ-HBQT of the Board of Directors dated March
2025 on approving the lime, agenda, and plan for organizing the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders 2025 - VI Term Meeting (2025-2030).

The Organizing Committee would like to introduce the Chair of Meeting Board, Secretary,
Vote Counting Committee, and Vote Counting Supervisory Board at the Annual General Meeting
of Shareholders 20235 - VI Term Meeting (2023-2030), including the following members:

I. Chair of Mzeting Board: 03 members:

I. Mr. Nguyen Pham Thuven - Chairman of the Board of Directors - Chairman of the
Mecting.

2. Mr. Nguyen Duc Nhien - Vice Chairman of the Beand of Directors - Member,

1. Mr. Dao Dinh De - Member of the Board of Directors - Member.

I1. Secretary: 01 member:

I. Mr, Nguyen Van Linh

II1, Vote Counting Committee: 03 members:

1. Mr. Mguyen Ngoc Tuyen - Head of the Board

2. Mr. Nguyen Xuan Truong - Member

3. Mr. Cao Chu Hien - Member

I'V.Vote Counting Supervisory Board: 02 members:

1. Mr. Trueng Cong Den - Head of the Board (Shareholder Representative).

2. Mr. Trinh Thanh Nghi - Member (Shareholder Representative),

According o the Charter of DongiNai Paint Corporation, the General Meeting is requested
to vere on the list and number of members of the Chair of Meeting Board, Secretary, Viote Counting
Committee, and Vote Counting Supervisory Board.

Respectfully submitted to the General Meeting for consideration and approval.

B
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SONADEZ] CORPORATION SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

DONGNAI PAINT CORPORATION Independence - Freedom - Happiness
MNo: 0122025/BC-BHCD Dang Nai, April 18, 2023
REPORT

1024 BUSINESS PRODUCTION RESULTS
& 2025 BUSINESS PRODUCTION PLAN

PART I: 2024 BUSINESS PRODUCTION RESULTS.

I SITUATION OVERVIEW,

1. Advantages.

- The company recejves support from Sonadezi Corporation’s Jeadership and cloge
direction from DiengNai Paint Corporation’s Board of Directors.

- Dong Nai Paint products are reputable with consumers and in the civil, industrial,
and mechanical construction markets. The company's prestige is inereasingly affirmed with
consumers, the consumption system, the distribution system, and two partners: PPG USA and

Akzonobe] Netherlands.

- The company's employees are a united collective; most employees are dedicated and
responsible in their work. Along with that, crganizations and unions operate according to
their functions and tasks, contributing to the business production results in the past year.

- Our company is one of the few businesses in Bien Hoa I Industrial Park that has
prepared a relocation site for the factory according to the policy of Deng Nai Province
People's Committee. This is also a premise for employees to feel secure in their work.

2. Difficulties and limitations.

- The global economy in 2024 fel] into chaos due o the impact of geopelitical conflicts
and Western economic sanclions against scme countries in the world, leading 1o supply chain
disruptions globally

- Although the domestic economy has improved, the real estate, civil construction,
industrial construction, and mechanical industries still face many difficulties in ourpur.

- The company’s production in 2024 was alse in the general situation of the pamnt
production industry - facing many difficulties in consumption, leading to a decrease in output
compared to the plan, in which partner FPG also decreased compared to 2023,

- According to the policy of Dong Nai Province People's Commirtee, Dong Nai Paint
is subject to relocation from Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park by the end of 2025, so investment in
infrastructure construction and machinery and equipment procurement is still limited, not
contributing much to increasing produectivity, expanding the premises, and storing finished
products and raw materials.




IL 2024 BUSINESS PRODUCTION RESULTS.

1. Results of achieved economic indicators.

2024 2024 2023 ACFL | ACILY
N, INEATLR UNIT | pian | acTUAL | AcTUAL (%) (%)
| | Total ewtput value ":,’.Lhﬁ"“ 325,141 333,420 312,017 103 107
7 | Total revenue b‘{:ﬂg" 14,000 123,706 125,095 108 99
¥ | Oustput of all kinds Tons 12,400 12,106 11,553 L 05
billion
4 | Profit (after tax) . _"-"ND T 748 &850 16,469 [ 14 T
Bisdgel contribution Million
5 | oavetle) M D 8,000 8,480 6,361 106 133
g [Avemesincoms Million 10,571 12,215 10,077 114 114
salary VYD * ’

2. Investment results:

- Financial investment: The company halds 31,200 shares in Nhon Trach Investment
Joint Stock Company, equivalent to VIND 819 million, In 2024, Nhon Trach Investment Joint
Stock Company did not pay dividends.

- Invesmment in produoction: Total investment in fixed assets and machincry and
equipment in 2024 was VND 387 million.

3. Report on land lease payment status at Ho Nal Industrial Park as of 31/12/2024,

- Land lease cost at Ho Nai Industrial Park: VND 71,180,038,027 (Including 10%
VAT and at the exchange rate of 31/12/2022).

- The company has paid: VIND 63,900,632 804,

- Bemaining amount to be paid: VIND 8,431,830,000 {equivalent to 330,000 USD at
the exchange raie of 3 1/12/2024),

I1I. BUSINESS OPERATION MANAGEMENT.

L. Production-Business-Sales Management.

1.1. Regarding production organization.

- In 2024, the workshops arranged labor reasonably, meeting the requirements for
overtime and overlapping shifts, thereby meeting the delivery schedule as requested by
Partners and Customers. Producing 12,106 tons of various products, this is a great effort of
the employees at the production area, in which absolute requirements for occupational safety,
environment and fire prevention along with product quality are prioritized.

- The production workshops have taken many measures to utilize the capacity of
machinery and equipment, working diligently, actively working overtime, overlapping shifts,
and coordinating well with the Technical Depariments, which are also factors contributing to
the stability of the Company's production.

- The Company has handed over to PPG VN Co., Lid. the entire status of the factory,
machinery, equipment, personnel, and legal documents at Yen Phong-Bac MNinh Factory, The

2




company officially terminated all production and business activities at Bac Ninh Branch,
from 01/08/2024.

- The company is signing a processing contract with 3 foreign partners: PPG VietMNam
Co., Lid,, PPG Yung Chi Coatings Co., Ltd., and Akzo Nobel Vietnam Ltd. This is an
important premise for us to feel secure in organizing production it the following years.

1.2. Regarding Business-Sales:

- Facing the increasingly difficul: production and business situation due to the impact
of the real estate and construction materials market, leading to a decrease in construction
projects, the sales team actively expanded to find new markets and customers, regularly
analyzing consumer trends to develop appropriate marketing and sales plans.

- In 2024, due to the difficult cconomic situation, advertising activities on television
were reduced, but the Company still maintained advertising for DONASA Hitech Plus water-
based paint tanks at Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park Water Tank and Rillbeard advertising at the
giteway to Bien Hoa City (30/4 Park - Bien Hoa) and in 2024, the consumption output of
DONASA Hitech Plus water-based paint doubled compared to 2023.

- Dong Nai Paint products - DONASA brand are currently being consumed at 93
Dealer Stores, 65 direct-consuming businesses, and more than 100 level 2 distribution stores
of the Distribution System. The company continuously develops promotion programs with
diverse and rich forms to increase sales and stimulate consumption to achieve the sct
economic largets.

- In order to increaze sales for 2024 and also as a gratitude and customer engagement
activity, in the last § months of the year, the Company launched a customer conference
tourism promotion program in Korea held in March 2025 with 69 participants.

- In sales and collection activities: The Accounting and Business Departmen
strengthens urging customers to pay debts, strictly controls old and newly arising debts. The
ratio of receivables 1o sales at the end of the vear decreased compared to the same period.

2. Tasks ensuring Production and Business.
2.1. Regarding Technical Work - Production Supervision,

- The Company's products during production and consumption are managed by the
IS0 9001:2015 Quality Management System. Product guality camplies with QUVN
16:2019/BXD; QUVN 08/BCT and Japanese standard J15 K 5663:2003.

- The company slways focuses on improving guality and product packaging to mest
customer needs and increase competitiveness in the decorative paint market. At the same
time, diversify different products to increase market share; during the year, the hotmeil
product line - traffic line marking paint was launched to the market.

. To increase competitive advantage, the Company is also developing the DONASA
medium-high-grade water-based paint line (including primer, interior, and exterior pant},
currently undergeing field trials in Bien Hoa and Kien Giang markets, and expected to be
commercially launched in 2025 once reliable quality results are obtained.

- The R&D technical team has researched and created many water-based and solvent-
hased products to diversify products and increase competitiveness in the market, These
products are being evaluated for quality and suitability for actual climatic conditions.

o
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2.2. Regarding Accounting and Statistics.

- Ensuring financial resources for internal payments as well as transactions with
foreign partners, Closely controlled debts incurred during business operations.

- Data processing and analysis, monthly and quarterly, are reflected promptly from the
Ind to the 12th of each month, thereby assisting the Board of Directors in making timely and
effective business decisions.

- Based on the semi-annual and annual avdit results of RSM Vietnam Auditing
Company and the supervision of the Board of Supervisors, the accounting work has been
carried out in accordance with the law and the Company's financial regulations.

2.3, Reparding Mechanical-Electrical and Construction.

- Effective cquipment maintenance and repair has limited breakdowns, and electrical
safety requirements are strictly controlled.

- All in¢idents related to the electrical system, machinery, and equipment operation
have been addressed with corrective and preventive actions. In 2024, no major machinery
breakdowns leading to production downtime occurred.

- The Mechanical-Electrical and Construction Department has always been proactive
in innovating and fabricating machinery and equipment for the factory to meet produetion
needs and save costs for the Company.

2.4, Regarding Organization-Administration-Human Resources.

- The work of building and developing human resources training is always focused an,
and on-site training activities have been maintained. Labor is allocated reasonably, meeting
the requirements for production and professional work of the entire Company.

- Advised and assisted the Board of Directors end the Board of Management in
complying with legal regulations, emulation and commendation, Party-Union, stock market,
e,

- Implementing regimes and policies for emplovess regarding wagss, income, working
hours, rest hours, labor msurance, etc., in aceordance with the provisions of labor relations
law.

- Political Security and Order and Safety inside and outside the Company are taken
care of, Complaints and questions about salary regimes and labor policies did not occur - The
Company maintains a cooperative and harmonious working environment.

- Requirements for occupational safety and hvgiene, fire prevention and fighting,
environmental protection, and health protection are maintained and well implemented,
contributing to ensuring safe and effective production and business activities.

3. Taking care of working conditions and employees' lives.

- Labor relations a1 the Company are harmonious, democratic, transparent, and ensure
fairness between coptribution and benefits. The working environment at the Company is
constantly being improved to ensure the health of employees.

- In 2024, the economic situation wag difficult, while many companies and enterprises

in the construction and building materials industry had to close, go bankrupt, or operate at a
low level, with employees taking turns off work, but DongNai Paint Corporation's employees
still had stable jobs and guaranteed income, higher than in 2023, Caliural and sports activities,
: 4



gifts for employees' children on the occasion of Mid-Autumn Festival, school opening, and
school vear-end were still maintained.

- In 2024, the Board of Management organized a vacation for all employees in Da
Nang City, this was also the first long trip for all employces in many years. This long vacation
helped employees increase solidarity and attachment to the company.

- All palicies for employees regarding: Working environment, rest, personal protective
equipment, insurance regimes, toxicity, periodic health check-ups, occupational health
examinations. .. are implemented in accordance with legal regulations.

4. Activities of the semi-professional union.

- The company has a Labor Protection Council, a Salary Council, an Emulation-
Discipline Couneil, an Initiative Council, an ISO Board, an Environmental Protection Board,
a Digital Transformation Board, a 55 Assessment Team, a Fire Prevention and Fighting
Team, a Student Safety and Hygiene Network Team.... These organizations and groups always
strive to fulfill their assigned functions and tasks.

- The company has also created conditions for socio-political organizations; Party cell
Trade Union, Youth Union, Veterans Association to promote their proper functions, duties,
as well as their leadership and guidance roles.

5. Safety, Fire Prevention, Health and Environmental Protection.

- Coordinsted with competent authorities to organize Uraining programs on
occupational safety and hygiene (OSH), chemical safety (CS), fire prevention and fighting
(FPF), health protection (HP), and environmental protection (EF), During the year, the
Company organized drills and participated in fire prevention and fighting competitions held
in Diongnai Paint Corporation and AMATA, achieving high results.

- The company has proactively developed measures to prevent and conirol hazards and
risks a1 the warkplace, during the year there were no occupational accidents and no employees
suffered from occupational diseases.

- Dirganized periodic health check-ups and occupational health examinations for all
employess, The results of periodic health cheek-ups and occupational disease detection for
employees throughout the company ensure production and work.

- In 2024, the company conducted envirommental monitoring and periodic
occupational environment monitoring in two areas, Dongnai Paint Corporation and Amata,
to improve working conditions in accordance with state regulations.

6. Emulation and commendation, community activities:
6.1. Regarding Emulation and Commendation:

- During the year, a shert-1érm emulation campaign was launched to celebrate the
company’s founding anniversary, the 30/4 and 01/5 holidays, and the 79th anniversary of
National Day, and the 37th anniversary of the establishment of Dong Mai Paint Factory. This
created an exciting emulation atmosphers, contributing to increased output and product
quality, and employees adhered well to company regulations and safety in production-
business.

- Emulation activities among emplovees are not perfunctory, therehy promptly
motivating employees. The snnual organization of emulation months not only brings
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economic and matenial significance but also raises awareness and enlightenment for workers
and has become the SON DONG NAI CULTURE.

6.2. Regarding gratitude activities and community outreach: The company participated
In community programs: Supporting the Gratitude Fund, supporting the poor to welcome Tet;
Supporting the Blind Association of districts in Dong Nai provinee,

PART II: BUSINESS PRODUCTION PLAN FOR 2025

I. GENERAL OBJECTIVES FOR 2025.

l. Leading employees to perform business production tasks to constantly improve
wages, income, and improve the lives of employees in the enterprise. Including: Developing
state capital, sharcholder capital, and high dividend yield.

2. Responsibly implement the production cooperation contract with two corporations,
AkzoNobel (Netherlands) and PPG (USA), to bring economic efficiency from the
cOOperation area,

3. The business production situation in 2025 and the following years still faces many
difficulties; the geopolitical situation in the world remains complex. Therefore, the
Company's Board of Managements must adapt flexibly, constantly expand the marker,
develop new customers, and stabilize product quality as important goals to overcome the
difficulties of 2025,

4, Strive W complete the 2025 business production tasks well according to the
SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING RESOLUTION and the SONADEZI CORPORATION'S
PLAN assigned to the Capital Representative, as a premise for implementing the business
production plan for the entire term V1 {20:235-2030).

5. Design a new factory and have a roadmap to gradually carry out procedures to build
the factory when there is funding support and compensation from the Dong Nai Provincial
People’s Committee.

1L IMPLEMENTATION OF 2025 PRODUCTION BUSINESS TASKS,
1. Actual economic indicators,

- Total output value: VIND 315 896 million

- Revenue: VND 114,000 millicn

- Budget contribution: VNI 7,700 million

- Profit (after tax): VIND 7,600 million

- Average salary income: YIND 11.296 million

- Expected dividends: 15%/par value.

- Total output: 12,030 tons.

2. Investment plan.

- Investment valuc: VNI 1,500 million, including:

Machinery and equipment: VIVD 1,500 million

II1. BUSINESS PRODUCTION MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES.

1. Production-Business-Sales Management



1.1. Regarding Production Organization:

- Produce according to customer and partner requirements, ensuring product quality,
progress, and delivery time. Avoid mistakes and errors leading to product damage during
production.

- Manage workshops, machinery, equipment, and vehicles 1o always be in good
working order, clean, and tidy to ensure production, Strictly implement requirements for labor
protection, fire and explosion safety, and environmental protection, and absolutely prevent
occupational accidents from eccurming at the Company.

1.2, Regarding Business-Sales:

- Focus on positioning Hotmeil paint products - Traffic line marking paint in the
market, while at the same time doing a good job of ensuring that the new medium and hagh-
grade water-based paint sets are ready for commercialization when the real estate, property,
and construction markets recowver.

- Continue 1o consclidate and expand the distribution system, focusing on retaining
customers in the Eastern and Southwestern provinces, paying more attention to customer care,

- Continuously develop new customers, with appropriate policies for each period to
sigpport new customers. For new products when entering the market, there should be
appropriate sales policies to stimulate demand.

- Taking advantage of and with the help of agencies in Dong Nai province, the
Corporation as well as member companies in Sonadezi Corporation, Dong Nai Paint has been

used in most of the provinee's projects, the Executive Board also has a plan to develop state
projects in the southeastern provinces and neighboring provinces where Dong Nai Paint has

a competifive advantage.
- Promote and maictain the SON DONGNAIL-DONASA brand on digital platforms,
existing signage systems, and through the Agent, Store, and Enterprise systems.

2. Tasks ensuring production-business:
2.1. Regarding Technical-Production Supervision:

- Based on the existing foundation and experience, focus research on stabilizing the
quality of Son Dong Nai products. Deepen research and development activities, and develop
new products based on market forecasts, focusing on developing industrial paint product
lines.

- For Advertising activities - Product quality supervision according to functions and
management scope. Minimize errors leading to substandard products.

2.2, Regarding Accounting-Stahstics:

- Properly implement the financial accounting funetion and the Company’s financial
regulations to ensure that all accounting transactions and expenditures adhere to the comect
principles and are not disallowed,

- Promote the role and function of Management Accounting to reduce fransaction
costs. Coordinate with Business o recover bad debits and strictly control the occurrence of
bad debts,
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- Perform statistical work well, analyze the effectiveness of business production
between domestic and cooperative regions, paying attention to forecasting, so that leaders can
make timely decigsions.

2.3, Begarding Electrical-Mechanical and Construction:

- Strictly control electrical safety regulations. Advise and propose electrical safaty
management measures at both factories - Strive 10 eliminate electrical incident risks.

- Maintenance must be carried out according to the annual plan, limiting breakdowns.
When ncidents occur, report promptly and propose solutions, without letting the workshops
wait for machines.

- All incidents related to the electrical system, machinery, and unsafe incidents related
to equipment operation must be recorded and comvective and preventive actions proposed,

2.4, Regarding Orpanization-Administration:

- Maintain political security and order inside and ouwtside the Company, Mamntam
company regulations and safety regulations, inspect and supervise to build a disciplined,
orderly, and safe working environmens,

- Take good care of the lives of the company's employees. Help improve the iving and
spiritual activities at the Company reasonably,

- Closely coordinate with the Trade Union Executive Committee and the Smanding
Board of the Labor Protection Council to carry out inspection and evaluation of activities
related to: working hours, rest time, occupational safety and health, fire prevention and
fighting, health insurance, and environmental protection.

- Implement emulation and commendation work well, paying anention 10 the form of
ad-hoc rewards to promptly motivate individuals and groups who perform well al work.

- Focus on human resource development, in-depth development of the management
apparatus, including on-the-job training and sending employees to advanced traimng courses.
3, Taking care of working conditions for employees.

- Ensure that 100% of emplovees fully undersiand the Labor Regulations and the
Collective Labor Agreement to improve discipline within the Company, especially to
harmonize labor relations.

- Focus on working conditions, pay attention to improvement activities, and fully equip
perscnal profective equipment to ensure that emplovees work in a healthy and safe
environment,

- Ensure employvment to stabilize income for employees. In which, fully implement
the policies and regimes in favor of emplovees.

4. Emulation and commendation work, community activities,

4.1. Regarding Emulation and Commendation: Actively participate in emulation
movements launched by Sonadezi Corporalion and the Emulation Cluster; emulation
activities af the company must create changes in the awareness and thinking habits of
emplovees and bring econcmic and spiritual benefits to employess.

4.2, Regarding Community-Oriented Activities: Centinue to respond to community-
oriented activities launched by the Corporation, contribute to the Gratitude Fund, the Agent
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Orange Victims Fund, and other gratitude and support activities as requested by Dong Nai
provinee,
IV. IMPLEMENTATION.

1. The Board of Directors closely directs the Board of Managements to effectively
implement the resolutions of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders and the quarterly
leadership resolutions of the Board of Directors.

2. The Board of Managements strictly complies with the direction of the Board of
Directors, the supervision and recommendations of the Board of Supervisors to effectively
implement the quarterly leadership resolutions of the Board of Directors.

PART III: CONCLUSION
Dear Delegates!
Dear Shareholders!

- The year 2024 has passed. Thank you to all sharcholders for cooperating and °
accompanying us during the past time. The year 2025 ahead will certainly be a year of 32

many difficulties, full of challenges, instability, and fierceness, but there are also many |
opportunities and development prospects ahead.
[

- Ta successfully implement the 2025 business production Plan, the Board of Directors

and the Board of Managements of the Company desire: The high unity of the shareholders, -
the collective of officials and employees. The sense of responsibility of the organizations and

unions in the Company and the support of Sonadezi Corporation.

- The Board of Directors, Board of Managements, and all officials and employecs of
DongNai Paint Corporation are wholeheartedly committed to striving to successfully
complete the 2025 business production Plan and throughout the 2025-2030 term.

- Wishing the delegates and shareholders good health, happiness, and success; wishing
the Congress a great sUcCcess.

Sincercly thank you!

'-2'-
X

L

e

F I__.'I:\-'.'l-

g






SONADEZ] CORPORATION
DONGNAI PAINT CORPORATION

No: 01/2025/BC-HBQT

SUMMARY OF 2024 ACTIVITIES - ORIENTATION OF 2025 ACTIVITIES
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF DONGNAI PAINT CORPORATION

SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
[ndependence - Freedom — Happiness

— -]

Dong Nai, April 18, 2023

REPORT

I. ASSESSMENT OF 2024 ACTIVITIES.
1. Organizational strueture of the Company's Board of Directors:

- The Board of Directors consists of 5 members, including 02 members directly
managing and operating the Company. Based on the Resolution of the General Meeting of
$hareholders, the Board of Directors maintains a working program through quarterly
meetings. Content of the meetings ensures compliance with legal regulations and the
Company's Charter, with the participation of members of the Board of Supervisors,

- In 2024, the Board of Directors held 04 regular meetings and 6 times sent written
requests for opinions from Board members to direct, orient business production objectives,

and decide an arising issues in the Company’s management and administration.
2. Results of business production leadership in 2024,

The Company’s Board of Directors has united with high consensug in organizing,
closely directing all activities of the Company and demonstrating responsibility 1o

sharcholders - The business production targets in 2024 are specifically as follows:

2024 2014 2023 | ACTUAL | ACTUAL

i SEHE UNIT | pLAN | ACTUAL | ACTUAL | PLAN (%) | /LY{%) |

|| Tomloupurvatue | MOO" | 325081 | 333420 312007 103 | 107

~ 2 | Total revenue T | 4000 123,706 | 125095 | 108 | 13

3| Output of all types Ton 12,400 [ 12,006 11353 9 | 103

4 | Profit (after tax) %ﬁ 7,748 8850 | 16,469 114 i 54
Budgel contribution | Million | S

5 | (payable). ey 80D | 8480 6,361 106 133

g |2omee sy ' st | 1zams|  10em 14 | 14

InRCome I: —

3. Resolutions and Decisions of the Board of Directors:

- The first meeting, on January 25, 2024, the Board of Directors decided:

+ Approved the 2023 Business Production Results.
+ Approved the 2024 Business Production Plan.
+ Agreed on the principles of the plan to organize the 2024 Annual General Meeting

of Shareholders.

+ Approved the interim dividend payment for the first phase of 2023 at 5%/par value.
+ Approved the 2024 salary scale plan,



- The Second meeting, March 03, 2024, the Board of Directors decided:

+ Approved the Business Production Results of Quarter 1/2024 (estimated
implementation).

+ Approved the Business Production Plan and other tasks for Chsarter 2/2024,

+ Approved the pavment of the remaining 2023 dividend at 15%/par value.

+ Increage the 2023 Development Investment Fund from 13% 10 30% and allocate
an additional VINL 10,000,000,000 from the remaining profits of previous years to the 2023
Development Investment Fund.

+ Approved the Content and the time of the 2024 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders.

- The Third meeting, August 16, 2024: The Board of Directors decided:

+ Approved the Business Production Results for the first 6 months of 2024

+ Approved the Business Production Plan and other tasks for Quarter 3 and the last
& months of 2024,

+ Approved the distribution of the remeiming 2023 dividends according to the
Resolution of the 2024 Annual General Mecting of Sharcholders at 10%/par value,

+ Approved the dismissal of Mr, Nguyen Bac Trong from the Intemal Audit due 1o
personal reasons,

- The fourth meeting, on December 06, 2024, the Board of Directors decided:

+ Approved the business production results of the first 9 months of 2024,

+ Approved the business production plan and other tasks for the fourth quarter of
2024,

- The Board of Directors has written opinions to decide on the following
contents:

+ Agreed to extend the factory lease contract with Thien Nhat Thien Co., Ltd. from
18122023 to 17032024,

+ Agreed to select Rem Vietnam Auditing & Comsulting Company Limited as the
auditing unit for the 2024 financial statements.

+ Agreed to terminate the investment project "INDUSTRIAL PAINT
PRODUCTION (PPG)" with PPG Viet Nam Co., Ltd. in Bac Ninh provinee and terminate
the operation of the Bac Ninh Branch factory - DongNai Paint Corporation, from
O1/092024,

+ Apreed to organize a promolion program for customers attending the Customer
Conference in Kores.

+ Apreed 1o borrow capital at VietinBank - Bien Hoa Indusirial Park Branch, to
supplement working capital for the Company's business production activitics.

4. Dividend policy decision and proposal:

- In 2024, the Company paid 2023 dividends to shareholders at a rate of 15%/par
vajue, with the amount: VIND 4,534,654 000,

- Based on the business production results of 2024, the Board of Directars proposes
to the General Meeting of Shareholders to pay a dividend of 18%/par value.



5. Remuneration, income and other benefits of members of the Board of
Directors:

Bonus and

No. Name Paosition Salary esisgsaniler Total

1 | Nguyen Pham Chairman of
Thuyen BOD cum Deputy | 429,921,000 160,324,000 | 590,245,000
General Director

2 | Nguyen Duc Vice Chairman of
Nhien BOD cum 497 383,000 137,164,000 | 634,547,000
General Director
3 | Dao Dinh De Member of BOD 113,992,000
Tran Trung Kien | Member of BEOD 113,992,000
Vu Nguyen Thi | Member of BOD
Harh 113,992,000

6. Report on transactions between the Company, Company’s subsidiaries,
companies controlled by the public company with more than 50% of charter capd 1

:'\\

with members of the Board of Directors and their related persons; transactiim
between the Company and companies in which members of the Board of Directorfh
founders or business managers within the last 3 years before the transaction. AN

Dictails in Appendix 2 on transactions between the company and related Perffﬁflﬂ
the company; or between the company and major sharcholders, internal person, rela

persons of internal peson in 2024 in the Corporate Govemance Reporte e
02/2024/BC-SDN dated January 01, 2025 of DongNai Paint Corporation.

7. Independent Board of Direetors: The Company does not have any independent
members of the Board of Directors.

§. Sub-committees under the Board of Directors: The Internal Audit has been
established.

9, Assessment of the Board of Directors' role in directing and supervising the
Board of Management:

- The Company's Board of Directors has led to ensure the harmony of interests

between shareholders and employess through dividends per share distributed to
¢hareholders and income, along with other benefits of employees through work results in
cach position.

- The Board of Directors has dirceted the Board of Management to operate in
accordance with the provisions of the Law and the Charter of & company listed on the stock
market.

- The Company's Board of Directors has directed the Board of Management 10
strietly implement the recommendations of the Board of Supervisors to ensure that the
business complies with legal regulations.

II. BUSINESS ORIENTATION IN 2025,

1. Economic indicators implement.

- Total cutput value : VNI 313,896 million
- Total revenue - VNI 114,000 million




- Budget contribution : VD 7,700 million

- Profit (after tax) : VIND 7,600 million
- Balary income average : VIND 11,296 million
- Expected dividends : 15%/par value.

- Tota] output + 12,030 tons.

2. Operational budget plan of the Board of Directors and Board of Supervisors in
2025 Based on Clause 5, Anticle 27 and Clause 2, Anicle 39 of the Charter of Dong Nai
Paint Corporation and the activities of the Board of Directors — Boand of Supervisors in
20235, the expected operating budget is YIND 200 million.

3. Implementation.

- The Board of Directors adheres to the Resolution of the 2025 Annual General
Mecting of Sharcholders to concretize production and business tasks and implement
economic targets within the year in accordance with the Law and the Company's Charter.

- The Beard of Directors bases on the busmess production situation of cach quarter
te have timely directions and decisions, helping the Board of Manapement fully fulfill its
role in managing the Company.

- The Board of Directors clesely coordinates with the Board of Supervisors to ensurg
that all activities of the Company and all arising economic transactions are monitored,
managed, and implemented in accordance with current regulations.

1. CONCLUSION.

Dear delegares!

Dear shareholders!

- The year 2024 has passed with many difficulties and challenges due to the impact
of the economy and the complicated political situation in the world, but with the efforts in
keadership, as well as the enthusiasm of the members of the Board of Directors, the
economic targets have been achieved according to the resolution of the General Meeting of
Shareholders.

- With the specific orientations reported above, the Board of Directors will strengthen
its direction and supervision of the Company's production and business activities, creating
favorable conditions for the Board of Management to complete the set plan.

- The Board of Directors respectfully submits to the General Meeting of Shareholders
for approval the 2024 Activity Report and the 2025 Activities Orientation

Hespectfully submitted to the General Meeting for consideration, decision, and
voting,

—

MNguyven Pham Thuven
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No.: 02/2025BC-HDOT Darg Nai, April 18, 2023

REFPORT :
ACTIVITIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS TERM V (2020 - 2025)
ORIENTATION OF ACTIVITIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS TERM VT (2025 - 2030)

A. EVALUATION OF TERM V ACTIVITIES (2020 - 2025).
I. RESULTS OF BUSINESS LEADERSHIP,
1. Economic indicators achieved during term ¥ (2020 - 2025).
Unit: Million VND

TT ltems 2020 121 1022 2023 1024
Plan | Actoal | Plan | Actind | Plan | Actual | Flan | Actwal | Flan | Act

138 00D 150 344 132000 | 125005 | L1400 | 133

I | Total revenue 135,000 | 147,349 132320 | 125,000 gl

2 | Profit after tax 3,840 11494 | 6424 13024 T.000 15,726 7,530 La k6% | 7,748 i

State budpet

payable 9000 | 10233 | 9i00| 8236 | w0 | 10898 | 9000 |  AS61| 8000 E480

4 | Rewmon a1 | msm| fa| s2se| rzae | 4k | 20aB| 4692 | s | IE8Y

Equity (¥a)

Investment in
5 | construction and 2,500 Gid | 2500 1375 3500 L 2,500 173 | 1500 A7

equipment

II. LEADERSHIFP IN OTHER AREAS.

1. The leadership of DongNai Paint Corporation has ensured that the company
operates in compliance with the laws and the charter of a listed company on the stock
market.

2, Led the enterprise to organize business production and fulfill other legal
obligations in accordance with the spirit of the Resolutions of the General Meeting of
Shareholders for the term and the Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders.

3. Maintained quarterly meetings, focusing on checking the implementation of the
contents of the Resolutions of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders to provide
timely directions to the Board of Directors.

4. Made Decisions, planned business production strategies, and reasonable
investment policies to help protect and promote the effectiveness of shareholders’
investment capital.

5. Led to ensure the harmonious benefits between sharcholders and employees
through annual dividends on shares of sharcholders and income, other benefits of
emplovees through work results in each position.



6. Coordinated well, listened to, and strictly implemented the recommendations of
the Hoard of Supervisors to ensure that the enterprise implemented the policies in
accordance with the Charter and legal regulations.

L EVALUATION AND COMMENTS.

1. Advantages.

- The Board of Directors and each member have performed their duties and powers
in accordance with the Company's Charter with a high sense of responsibility.

- Supported the Board of Management in management, implemented the business
plan with high efficiency, and completed the Resolution of the Annual General Meeting
of Shareholders for 5 years,

- The regimes, policies, salaries, and bonuses of employees are implemented in
accordance with legal regulations, and the average income of the following yesr is always
hugher than the previous year.

- The brand, image, and value of the Company are increasingly enhanced through
product branding programs, consolidating and developing the distribution system and
product position 10 the market.

- The environment and working conditions of employees at the enterprise are
always taken care of and improved - Although the factory is in the paint industry and is
sulyject to relocation according to the policy of Dong Nai province, it is always clean, tidy,
and organized.

- Security and order inside and outside the enterprise are maintained and stable,
business activitics and financial situation are healthy, transparent, and capital resources
are preserved and developed.

2, Limitations and shorteomings.

- The research on new products has not been really effective, human resources have
not mel the market's mnovation needs, and the Company's business stil]l depends on
pariners, so the setting of economic targets is always passive,

- According to the policy of Dong Nai Province People's Commitee, DongNai
Paint Corporation i$ subject to relocation from Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park by the end of
2025, invéstment m basic construction and procurement of machinery and equipment is
stil]l limited, not contributing much to increasing productivity and expanding production
and warchousing space for finished products and raw materials,

B. OPERATIONAL DIRECTION FOR TERM VI (2025 - 2030).

I. OBJECTIVES.

1. Foeus on and mobilize all resources to build the factory at Ho Nai Industrial
Park, organize production and business activities, maintain security and order, and ensure
jobs for emplovees when relocating to the new location.

2. Develop and diversify DongNai Pamnt - DONASA products along with
reasonable consumption policies so that DONGNAI PAINT becomes a reputable brand
that 15 competifive with domestic and foreign paint brands.

3. During the term, focus will be on developing the DONASA brand. Increase the
proportion of domestic sales and gradually reduce the proportion of cooperation, Focus
on the Southeast region market while maintaining and expanding the market in the Central
Highlands, Central, and Westemn regions, etc.



4. The Board of Directors will work closely with the Board of Management and
coordinate clogely with the Board of Supervisors to lead the enterprise to implement the
Resclution of the VI Term Congress with the highest results. Contribute 10 enhancing the
competitiveness of the company and bringing the highest efficiency on each share of
capital of shareholders, including reasonable benefits for employees.

1. ECONOMIC TARGETS FOR TERM VI (2025 - 2030).

1. Forecast economic indicators (Year-on-year growth).

Llnit: Million VND

Na. Thems Plan 2025 | Plan 2026 | Plan 2027 | Plan 2028 | Plan 2029
|| Total revenue 114000 119700 125600 131800 | 138300
2 | Profit after tax 7,600 7,800 8,000 %200 8400
3 | State budget payable 7,700 8,000 3,400 R,800 9.200 |
4 | Return of Equity 14.66% 14.91% | 15.14% 1537% | &2
3 Lm%ﬁfm“;f“mm“ Lsoo | 20000 20,000 |, 500

2. Basis for setting the above targets.

- The Board of Directors and the Board of Management based the above targdibi
the brand, resources, position of the company, and market forecasts.

- Based on the above reality. the Board of Directors and the Board of Manage
forecast economie and social indicators based on three main indicators: Revenue, Output,
and Budget contribution growth over the years,

1. IMPLEMENTATION MEASURES.

1. Implementing the Resolution of Term VI,

- The Board of Directors will lead the enterprise to implement production and
business objectives and other social obligations in accordance with the law and the
company's charter, -

- Based on the Resolution of the Term Congress, the Board of Directors will
specify each year 1o achieve the highest results, aiming to develop the enterprise and bring
the highest economic cfficiency 1o the company and shareholders,

- The Board of Management will comply with the leadership of the Board of
Directors, specifically the resolutions of the Annual General Meeting and quarterly
resolutions of the Board of Directors to manage production and business activities 1o
achieve the highest results.

2, Directing production in the DongNai Paint - DONASA area.

- Continuously improve product quality and packaging to meet customer needs.
Focus on researching new products to diversify user groups, with a focus on
INDUSTRIAL PAINT product lines.

- Adapt and be flexible in the competitive environment; Focus on building and
promoting the brand; Consclidate marketing and sales policies so that the DONGNAI
PAINT - DOMNASA brand gradually establishes a solid pesition in the market.

- During the term, resources will be focused on increasing output and revenue for
the DONASA brand in the domestic market. Continsously improve and enhance
production efficiency to increase employee income, aligning with general regional salary
levels and specifically within the paint industry.
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4. Maintain good cooperation with two partaers

- Collaborate effectively with Akzo Nobel Coatings Vietnam Limited in the
production of marine paint, oil rig paint, and industrial paint,

- Collaborate effectively with PPG Vietnam Co., Ltd. in the production of high-
quality industrial paints to supply color-coated metal production and specialized paints
for multinational ¢corporations.

C. CONCLUSION.

Dear Delegates!

Dear Shareholders!

To effectively implement the business production plan for Term VI as outlined in
the Resolution of the General Meeting, the Board of Directors and the Board of
Management of the Company desire: Strong unity and consensus among sharcholders and
emplovees; a spint of shared responsibility between the Board of Dhirectors and the Board
of Supervisors; limely support and direction from the Members' Council - the Board of
Management of SONADEZ] Corporation; and especially the sharing, feedback, and
support of the shareholders of DongNai Paint Corporation.

Wishing the delegates and sharcholders health, happiness, and success; Wishing
our Congress a great success,

Thank you!




SONADEZ] CORPORATION SOCTALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

DONGNAI PAINT CORPORATION Independence - Freedom - Happiness
No: 032025TTr-HBQT Darg Nai, April 18, 20235
PROPOSAL

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS 2025
VI TERM MEETING (2025-2030)

Regarding: Approval of the 2024 Financial Statements
DongNai Paint Corporation

- Purzuant to the Enterprise Law No. 592020/0H14 dated June 17, 2020, 1ssusd
by the National Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam.

- Pursuant to the Charter of DongNai Paint Corporation, amended and
supplemented on 28/09/2023,

- Based on the 2024 Financial Statements of DongiMNal Paint Corporation audited
by RSM Vietnam Auditing and Consulting Co., Lid.

The Board of Directors submits to the General Meeting the 2024 Financial
Statements of DongMai Paint Carporation, inchuding the following contents:

- Report of The Board of Managements.

- Independent audit report.

- Balance sheet,

= Incorme statement.

- Cash flow statement.

- MNotes to the financial statements,

The entire content of the 2024 Financial Statements is presented to the General
Meeting for review in the meeting documents. Shareholders who require further details
on the Financial Statements, please contact the Board of Managements for detailed
explanarions.

Respectfully submitted to the General Meeting for consideration and appraval.

._"'..- H-’"?‘":i.' BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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DONGNAI PAINT CORPORATION

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Far the indnsiad year ended 31 December 2024
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DOMGNA] PAIMT CORPORATION
Address: Bian Hoa 1 Indusirial Park, Read Ne. 7, An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa Cily, Dong Mai Pravince,
Whrnam E—
COMNTEMTS
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DONGHAI PAINT CORPORATION
Addrass: Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park, Rosd Ma. 7, An Binh Waard, Slen Hoa City, Dong Kai Prosings,

Viainam .

THE MANAGEMENT'S REFORT

The management of Dengnai Panl Corporation [hereinafer rafesrad to a3 "the Company”) hareby prasents is
repart and the audied Snancial statements of the Comgpany for the inarcial year ended 31 Dacamber 2024,

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE AND THE
MANAGEMENT

Members of the Board of Directars during the year and gn lhe date of this report inchude:

Fud name Pasition

idr Mguyan Pham Thugen Chairpargen

b Mouyen Duc Mhien Wiza chalrperson
M Daa Dinh De Mamber

b Tran Trung Kien Member

Bz W Mgaepen Thi Hanh Member
tarnbers of the Supervisory Commitles during he year snd on the daba of this repe inciude:
Full nama Fasllion

i Dang Le Blich Pruong Head

b= Bui Thi Thuy Lien Mamber

Mz Trnh Thi Mgoc Huong Mamber

Mambers of managemeant during the year and on Ihe dale of his repaodt inchede:

Eull nama Posilinn

bir Mguyen Duc Khien Ganarsl Diracior

Mr Mguyen Fham Thuyan Vice Genaral Directar
K= Huynh Mgegen Thanh Uyen Vies (enaral Direchor
AUDITOR

The accompanying financial statements of tha Company for the fnancial year ended 31 Decamber 2034 were
sudited by REM Viatnam Auditing & Consulling Company Limited, a membear firm of REM Intemational,

RESPONSIBILITY OF THE MANAGEMENT

The Company’s managemant |s respansible for preparing Ihe financial slatements of each perlod which give
& true and fair view of the finansial pogition of the Gormpany and the resuits of ks oparalions and it cash fows.

[n prepanng thess financial statemanls, ihe managament is requinad io;
v Salect suitable accounding policies and then apply them consislently;

«  Make judgments and estimates That are reasanalile and prodont;

+ Sule whether applicable accounling principtes have been followed, subject to any depariunes (hal need
b0 be disciosed and explainad in the fimmcial statements,

»  Frapare the financial staterments on the going soncern basis wnless 1 is Inappropriate 1o presuma that tha
Coempany will condints in business; and

s [Design and implemant the intarnal conlral yalam aifectively for a falr proparation and prasentaion of the
financial statements so as to mitigate error of frawed.
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DOMNGNAI PAINT CORPORATION
Address: Bian Hoa 1 Industrial Pack, Roasd Ma, 7, An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa Cily, Dong Nal Provinos,
Viatnam

THE MANAGEMENT'S REPORT [CONTINUED)

Tha management is respansible for enswring that proper accounting racords are kept which dischse, with
regsonable sccuracy al any tma, the fnancial posilion of the Company and sasuie that the nancial
slatameanta comphy with Vielmamase Ascounting Standards, Vielnamesa Corporale Accounbing Systarm and
prevailing accounting ragulations in Vistnam. The managemenl is alse responsitiie for ealeguarding Ihe aasals
of the Company and hence for taking reasonable sleps for Ihe prevention and debection of fraud and olher

irregulariiies.

The meragement confirms fhak bhe Company has comgllad with Bhe above reguraments In praparing lhase |
financial statements.

STATEMENT BY THE MANAGEMENT

Inn Ihe managemant’s apldon, the accampanying financial staterments give a ines and Rair view of the financial %
position of the Company &8 al 31 December 2024 and the resuits of fs operalions and its cesh flows for the
figaneial year then ended in acoordancs wifh e Vistnarmese Accownting Stendards, Viatnamase Corporate

Acoounting Syslerm and prevailing sccaunting regeiations in Viatnam

nuﬁhahaﬂ'n{ managemant,
.rm- n, ~

_H-.-"-ih
‘*Hrnr‘f' El-f'
Mejiryer Due Mhien
Ganaral Diractor

Oomg Nad Provines, 20 Felvusry 2025
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INDEPEMDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT e i okl viethom
To Sharafiolders
Memibers of the Board of Dirsctors
Members of tha management
DiFNGHNAl PAINT CORPORATION
Rapart on the financial stalemonts
Wa have swdited the sccompanyling linenclal statements of Dangnel Paint Corparation (herednatter ralerred o
&z “lhe Company™) prepared on 20 Febviary 2025 as s2f oul from page 05 to page 36 which comprise [he
statament of financial posfilan as @l 31 Decamber 2024, and the income atalemant, cagh-llow atsterenl for
Ihe financial year then erded, and the nates to the financial statamenls !
The management’s Responsibility i
The management |3 respongiole far the prepaiation and fair presentation of these financlal slalementa in f
acoordarce with Vislnamese Accounling Standards aad Vienamese Corporabe Accounting Systam and i

relevant IEgL'iIiIFDﬂ % 1 the preparation and prasantabon of GBnancial statemeanls and for such Enlenal cantrel
a5 tha Mﬁl‘lﬂﬂﬂ'ﬂ‘ll delermings 15 nechssay 19 anabia he prepmtm and presantaboen of ha financtad
stalements that ane free fom matedal missiatement, whalher due b fraud or errar,

Auditors' Hesponsibilliy

Chur responality 1s bo express an oginion oo hese linancial slalerments based on our audit. We cordcted
aur audil in accardance wilh Wielnamese Standards on Audiling, Those standards reguire thal we compdy Wil
ethics regquirgmends and plan and perfarrm the awdd o oblain reasonable assurance abaul Whedber [he
financial slalarnents are Iree from matarial migstalement,

&n audit invalvas parforming procedures to obtain audit evidence abouf the amounls and disclosures in he
financial stalements. Tha procedures selectad depend an the suditor's judgmeant, including tha assessmenl of
the ssks of materal misslatement of e inancial statements, whather due to fraed or ercr. In making thosa
risk assessmants, e audilor considers inlerral conlrol ralevanl ke the anlily's pragaration ard fai presantalion
of the financial stzlemanls in order to design audit procedures that aro apgrapriate in the droumstances, bul
rid for the purposa of expreesing an opinion on [he effectiveness of Ihe antdy's internal comlral, An aucit alsa
includes evaliating thie apprepriataness of acoounting policiés used and the reasonableness of accounting
eslimmabes misde by Ihe rranagement, as well 28 evalualing the overall presentation of the finandal stalemants.

W balieve that the sudil maidenas we kave obidned s sufficient and approgriabe lo provide a basis for our
audil epinken.

THE POWIER DF BERNG UNDERSTODRD
ASSURAMCE | TAK | CONSULTING

B e oL e A S Terk o] e 3 3z FEEL LN b Pa o marwi-aaly B o iy, ol of i B
Bl g Bl Wor WAL rirae bl Jach eyt o rd v ord sy Bt 1wy e el g g okl
Frngr TP Lt s b St brr B e L Bl el | g Bt 30 L o
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INDEFEHDEMNT AUDITOR'S REPORT {CONTINUED]

o

I owrepinion, the accompanying finencia statements give a ue and Talr view of the financial position of
Dangrai Paint Corparatian as 8t 31 Dacamber 2024, and of the results of ils financial performance &nd s
cash fows for the financial year then ended in sccordance with Vielnarmess Accounling Standards and
Vieinamoss Corporata Accotinling Sysler issued undar Ciroutsr 200020 14TT-BTC daked 22 Decamber 2014
and Circular BB T-ATE datad 21 March 2016 by Minlstry of Finance and ralyvant egisialion &% 10 the

preparation and presentalion of inansial statemants,

i'lnur-n Thi ¥uan Kieu

Vice Ganeral Director Auditor
Aidil Prsclice Reglstrallon Cerlificale; Audil Practice Ragistration Certilicate
MT2-2023-026-7 8547-2025-026-1

FEM Vietnam Awditing & Consulting Gompany Limited

Ha Chi Mink City, 20 February 2025

As disciosad b Note 21 fo the Snencial statements, e accomparying fnanchal sfatemants are nol infended
Ta pragant tha fnancial pasition, finsncis! parformance and cash fows in accordince wilh sccaunting principles
and pragiicss gereraly acepplad i countries snd jinrsdiclions afhar fuw Vialnam,

SR S B —
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DOMNGHAI PAINT CORPORATION
Address: Bien Hoa 1 lndustrial Park, Road Ma, 7. An Bink Ward, Bian Hoa City, Dong Nai Province,

Wiatnam
Fonm B 01 - DM
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 Decamber 2024

Expresaed in WHD
s at] Az al
ASSETS Coda | Moles 31 Dac, 2024 01 Jan, 2024
f. GCURRENT ASSETS 104 53,058,106, 347 A, 206,203 488
I Cash and cash equivalents 1140 4,584 484,554 4,209 000,623
1, Cash 11| 44 4.568,454,559 A, 209,000,623
I, Current aceount racelvablos 130 27 B0, 167 882 21,733,398 811
1, Trade recsivablios 31| 42 29,725, D45, 261 23,006,666,936
2, Mdvancas bo suppliors 132 45 32 460 -
3, Oilkver current recaeivables 134 g, 308,893 A00,898,125
4,  Provigion for doubthul debis 137 | 4.3 (2270218 432 (2172186, 249)
. Invanioriaw 140 | 44 20,604,257, TaG 21,547 82,220
1. Invenlores 141 20855, 775,006 21,624,063 016
T Provighan for decline in vahe of imesiomss 148 (85,517,300} (75, 180, 758
IV, Cihar current assels 160 TG 400,824
1 Walpe added tax deduchble 162 TG 400 A3
B. MNOM-CLIRRENT ABSETS 200 56,2704 6847, V88 ﬂﬁ,ﬂﬁi.ﬁﬂ,ﬂ‘?
.  Hop-eurrenk account recaivables 210 TED,000,000
1. Othar nar-current recaivables 216 FE0,000. 000
I, Fixed assols 220 1068, 944,950 1,471,356.953
1. Tengible ixed assots 221 | 45 1,168,944 9094 1,471,356 053
Cost 222 M, 743,783,133 az 382,232 BED
Accumulated depreciation zra (30,577,838,137)( (50,880 675.935)

. Won-cureent fingnclal investmeils 250 15,047,543 819,000,000
1. Imvestment in olher enlibes 253 H19,000,000 A1%, 000,000
9 Prowigion for non-curre] invasimanls 25 {103,952 457} .
IV, Ofher pos-currant aasats 260 54,393 655,210 53,991 187 ,F 4
1. Man-current prepaynems M1 | 4.8 g4,170,970,034 BI6EE G0 b4l
2. Daferred income oy assets P i) 202 585 185 232 ERG1ES
TOTAL ASSETS [270 = 100 + 200) 270 109,332, 767,705 | 105,158,227 175

{Laa tha next s
5

The accompanying notes ane ar nlegral pard of K fancial stafemants
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DORNGHAI PAINT CORPORATION
Agddress Blen Hoa 1 Indwslrial Padk, Read Me. 7, An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa Cily, Dong Mai Provincs,
Watnam
Farm B 01 - DN
STATEMENT OF FINAMGCIAL POSITION [CONTINUED)
Az ak 31 Decermber 20024
Expressed in WHD
As at A af
RESOURCES Cada | Motes M Do, 2024 01 Jam. 2024
. LIABILITIES 0@ 42,307, 188,057 4 851,903,009
I, Currant liabillities e A2 871 88,957 A0, 164,272,489
1, Trade payebies 811 |47 17,374, %26,003 18,545 F54, TR0
2 Advances fno cusiominng 5i3 216,077,860 138,177,830
3, Taxes and amounts payable fo lhe slale budget| 313 | 4.8 324,847,540 E40,395,870
4. Payables o employees 34 | a8 2,930,807,205 312,291,381
5 Accnued pxpanges s | 410 3,373,103, 125 537 241,768
B Curtent lksmns and obligatons endar firancs
sy sy 320 § 411 13,474 TEE BED 12,046,505, B9
7. Bonus and wellare fund 322 | 4.12 4 003,158,934 5673105 001
II. Mon-current labilities 330 200,000,000 687,680,550
I. Other nor-curant payabias EET) 2000, TR0 GRT &80, 550
. OWMERS EQUITY i 6, 534, 647,748 &, 206,264,136
. Eguity 410 | 413 | @8,035667,748 | 64,206,264,136
1. Cwner's condrizubed capital 41 30,354, 360,000 30 364 350,000
I Investment and developmant fund 418 (4 136 21,270,364,407 6,587 580,230
3 ihes resensas 420 14136 1,518,200,000 1,518 200,000
4. Relainad aarmings 421 13,782,643, 341 25,836, 123,805
Beginning accumulatad retalned eamings d2ia B,811,172 BO& 15, 122,150,184
Relainad eamings of the curnant yesr 4 i 4 871 4ATH 535 10,713,953, T2
TOTAL RESOURGCES (440 = 30 -+ 400) Al 108,332, 77,104 108,168,227 175

Gengral Diroolor

Cong Mad Prowinga, 20 Febrrary 2025

Hingnh Thi Thanh Huang
Chief Aggountant

o
e

Mguyen Bag Trimg

Proparer

Ther fecampaviWg nalfas s an hklegeal parf of fhe fnarcial aia;af“r_rwrts
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DONGHAI PAINT CORPORATION
Address. Blen Hoa 1 Induslrial Park, Road Ne. 7, An Bink Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nal Province,

Wiatnam
INGOME STATEMENT
Far tha financial year ended 31 Dacambar 2024

ITEMS Code| Motes Yoar 2
1. Revanue 01 §.1 124 476,353,785 | 116,380,575,193
2, Deduciang o | 52 4,828,382 245 6,865,137, 592
3 Mek revenue 19 119,647.971,540 | 110.625.407,6806
4 Caslof sales 11| 53 Bd,7I0ATS 18|  A0013.219,2M
5 Gross profit 0 34,821,256,022 | 30522.213,305
5. Fmange iIncama e 64 33,38 509 10.245 672 302
7. Fnance expanse 22 5.5 4 470,930,992 4,782 806 519

O which, Inberastaxpensg 22 1,054, 555 433 1.306,022,332
&, Sefling expense 25 | 565 B, 460,346,058 B2, 178,03
8, Gemeral and sdminisiralive axpenss 26 6.7 14,308,622 310 11,6859 393,058
10, Qperating profib]less) i T.714, 791 87 17,353,308, %98
11. Qther income 3| 54 4,024,325 338 4,313,701, 006
12, Other expensa 3 592 679,706 17,251,484
13, Mat olher incomei{less) 40 3,441,648 542 3 386 479 537
14, necounting profitfioss) before fax &Q 11,156, 440,413 | 20,749,796,533
15, Curien] corporale Income tax expense & | B 2,308 492,106 4,421,139, 201
18, Deferred corporals income 18y axpanss 52 - {4 000, 000N
17. Nat profiiloss) alter fax & B, 349,948,307 16,168,847, 332
1B. Bask earnings per shang 0| 4134 2,366 4242
18, Dilsled esmings per share 71 | 4134 2,366 4,342

e ol
1 Huyish Thi Thanh Huang I‘quy-aln Bae Trunyg
GGeneral Diractor Chief Accountant Preparer
Dang Mal Prowinga, 20 Febanary 2025
Fi

Tha aGcnpanyiy notes are an integral past of the financial slalemants




-i.'u.-ummuuummmmmwu.-umlhu,-wllf!.l.'

% ww  am AWl Eml oEs Eml IR E&l PRI da&l

DOMNGHNAI PAINT CORPORATION
Maddress: Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park, Road Mo, 7, An Binh Ward, Blen Hoa Cily, Domg Mal Pravines,

‘Wiabisaim

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(ldiract methodd}
For the financial year ended 11 December 2024

Form B 03 - ON

Expressed in WND

|ITI=1|lE Cuade | Notes Woar 2024 Year 2023
1I_ CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
1. Met profii {loss) before taxes 13 11,156,440, 411 | 20,749 THE 533
2. Adjustment far;
Depreciation and amerlisation a2 | a9 BRRAM T2 | 1,022,182 894
Provisions a3 191,42 144 (5,320, 365)
Forelgn exchange gainsfoszes from revaluadion of
foraign currency manslany iems 04 - (12,671, 500)
Gainafazses iom invesimant 05 {38 516,675) [z-ﬁ.mﬁ.ﬂuzpi
Interest expengs 06 55 1.054. 585433 1,386,022 332
3. Dparaling profit /[lose) balore adjustments to
warking capltal i 13,085, 06023,087 | 23,916,034,102
Increase or decraasa in accounls regevatles 0% (4, TET B, 2300 1, 7RIS 006
Increass or decreasa in nvenborisg 10 458,288,010 3300, 403,106
Incraasa or decraase In acsounts sayable
{excheding inberest expense and GIT payaiia) 8 2116,880,6T1 | (3447, 150,551)
Ingrease or decresse prepald expenses 12 (482 $67 405 | [0.539,099 183}
Increase or decrease in lrading securilies 13 - 2.4%0,000,000
Ingerast paid 14 {1,054 555, 433)]  {1.386,052.337)
Carporabe income tax pad 15 | 48 (2,587 200,355}  (£,388 3056, B04)
[her cash infiowes Tram operating activitias 16 TB16,000 1,480, G00
Cher ceah oulliows Irem operating aclivites 17 (3,343,551, 70 (1.55T.ET5,MD:1
Mt cash from operating activities i 3,892, 30,380 | 10,237,553,234
Il. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
1, Acquisition and gonsbuclion of fixed assets and
olhar long-tamm assets 1 (434,772,144} {133,434, 000)
2. Proceads from disposals of fixed asaats and
oihves long-lerm assets x 26,000,000 .
3 Interest and dividends recaivad 27 13 516675 24,075 002
Het cash from invasting sctivities o (386,255 469) (109,382 108)
{Fae the text pegs)

The BCcompaiying holes are an r'r?;gm.l partof the faansial stelaments

_ = ¢ —— g e
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DOMGHA] PAINT CORPORATION
Address; Bien Hoa 1 Indusirial Park, Road No, 7, An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nal Province,
Yiglnam
Farm B 03 - 0K
CASH FLOW STATEMEMNT
{Indirect methad)
Fior the financial year ended 31 Decamber 2024
E saed in WD

ITEMS Code | Notes Yoar 2024 Year 2023
il CASH FLOWS FROM FINAMCING ACTIVITIES
1. Procecds fram barmwings I | &1 | I7.040.204257 | 3607 HTTER
2 Rapayment of barrawings M| A2 | (35519,021,237)| (2071 T548TT)
3. Dividends paid 36 14.13.6| {(4,554654,000)] (5.313.762,000)

Met zaah from financing activities 43 {3.926,390,880) (11,478,180,103]

MET INCREASE/(DECREASE] IN CASH

(50 = 30+ 20+ 40) a0 39483 036 | (1,049.059,067)

Gash and cash equivalents at beginning of yaar LY £,209,000,823 5,268,084, 540

Imgsact of exchanga rate luctuatan 61 - -

CASH AND GASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF

YEAR (70 = 50 + BO + 1) O | At 4,588,434 550 | 4,209,000,623

- =
s _Eyz{z - "'\II

General Director

Huynh Thi Thanli Huong

Chiaf Accountant

hang Mal Brovince, 20 Febroary 2025

-

Mauyen Bac Trung

Fraparer

The pocampanying notes am an iegral part of the francisl stalamants
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DONGHAI PAINT CORPORATION o
Aadrags: Blen Hoa 1 Industrial Park, Road Mo, 7, An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Mai Provinca,
Wininam

Form B 08 - OM
MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

L B Ty |

1.1, Structure of awneeship

|
Dongnai Paint Carparation (herainater ralerad to as “tha Company”) — former name iz Dongaal Palnt *Jli
Factory = a state-owned enterprise under Dong Mal Departrent of Industry, On 13 Decemiber 1988, r«r.!
ithe GCompany was corverted inbo a jeint slock company cabed Dong Nai Paint Corparation in ol
accordance with Business Ragistration Certificala Mo, 3500451024 dated 01 March 2000 granted by ""t
Ddng Mai Provines's Department of Planning and Immsiment and clher amended ceclificates F

fhereafier with he latest one dated 23 October 2023
The cladter capitsl as shpulstad In the Business Regisiralion Cevlilicale is WD 30,5354, 350,000

1w

T e T e

Tha Company's registered head office Is Bien Hoa 1 Indusirial Park; Road Mo, 7, An Bich \Ward, Ban
Hoa City, Oang Mal Provincs, Wietnam.

Tha number of employees a5 ab 371 Decambar 2024 was 140 (31 December 2020 1687}
1.2, Busziness field
Manufachuring.
1.3, Oparating Induskry and principal activities ;

The Company is principaly engaged i preduetien and Irading of paint products, produgtion of maly
{wall putty).

1.4, Mormal sparating cyela |
The Campany’s narmal eperaling oyale iz carried ouf for a peried of 13 manths.
1.8,  Operating activities In the financlal year Impaciing the finangial stalemnents

According b the Resolution Mo 320024/NG-HBEOT delod 12 June 2024 and |he Rasciuton Mo
AGR0Z4M-HEOT dated 30 Aegusl 7024, the Board of Dkectors approved ihe fermisation of
operallons al the Bac Minh branch dui 1o the expiration of the vestment projocts duration anmd jhe
decizion not to extand the invesiment, the dale of terminallon ks from 01 Seplember 2024, Currenily,
ihe Company ks In the process of completing the procoduras b9 dissolve the branch,

i BABIS OF PREPARATION
21, Aceounting stancards, accounting system

The accompanying fmancial statamants, expressed in Vieinamesea Dong ("WNDT), are prepared unders
the historioal cosl carvention, and Inaccordance with Vistnamese Accounting Standards, Viatnamese
Corporate Accounting System, and prevating accounting reguations in Vigknam.

Tha accampanying financial stataments are not intendad to present the financial posilion, results of
aperations and cash fiows In accordance with ascounting principles and praclices generally aeoepted
in caunlries and jurisdiclions athar than Yistram,

2.2, Fonns of aecounting recards

The form of accounting records applied in the Company is The General Journal

10
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DOMGHAI PAINT CORPORATION
Addreas: Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park, Road Ma. 7, An Binh Ward, Bian Hos City, Dong Nai Provinoe,

Vistnam

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2.3 Financlal year

The Company’s finsncial year i from 01 January o 31 December.
P Reporting and funciional gurrency

The Company maintaing its accounting récords in VD
X EIE_EHI-'IHNT AGCCOUNTING POLICIES

1 Foralgn currencles

s The exchangs rale appBsd in accounling is [he acbual rensaction exchange rate al the lime of

Iransactcn;
s The exchange rate appicable lo asset ra-avalualion is the forelgn curmency-buying rate;

o The exchange rate appicabie o labilty re-evaluation s the foreign currency-salling rale,

Transactions in foreign currencias are recarded, on inilial recognition, In the reporting curfency, by
applying te the freign currency amount the spal exchanga rata between e regrarting cumenay and
e foraign curransy al the date of tha fransaction, The exchange differances aising on tha seltdzmen
of monatary iimms ane recogrised in profit or loss in the year in which they aise. At the end of Iha
rEporEng year, monetary fems exchading advances 10 supplars, propaid expenses, and umaamead
reviapea, which are denominated in forekgn currancy, ang reported using the closing rale and reaukenl
axchange differances rasulting fram the reporting alter offsat pre fecognised in profit o D55 In the year

imwhich they arse,

2.2, Use of esiimaices
The preparation of the fmancial slalements requires the managamant o make estimaies and
assurngtions Mat impact the carrying value of cerlain assels and labdities, contingent as=et: a8 al n
Decenber 2024 and abilibes reparted in the noles as well as revenues and expenses fud the linancial
year ended 31 December 2024, Although these estimates are Lased on the managomenl's beal

knowiadge of all relevant Infarmaticn avaiable at the date when the financial slataments aré prapared,
this does not pravent aclual figiras difarng fram estimates.

3.3 GCash
Cash eomprise cash in hand and cash at bank as at the end of reporting year,

4.  Account receivables

Recognition method

pecounl recalvables Bre siated at the carying amowis of rade receivables and olher recavanios
Imss provisions for doubbful debls.

Provision for doubiful debis

A5 af tha date of e fnancial skaterments, provisions far doubtful dabts are recognizad for past-due
acoounts raceiable and for accounls recelvable where cireumvstances indicale thal they might be
uncallectila o for uncelectible debis due o bquidation, bankroptoy, or similar difficullies,

The diference between the required balance and the existing batance of pravision for daubliul dabls
ia recorded a8 a genaral snd adminisirative pxpense in the income stalement.

11
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DOMNGMAI PAINT CORPORATION
Address Biap Hoa 1 Industrial Park, Road Mo, 7, Aqa Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Mai Provinca,
Wiakinam

3.6.

LS

HOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (COMTINUED]
inventories

frvanfory nteasuraniend

Fnveniorias are measured ai the lewer of cost and net ralisabie value, .

Thi cosls of mventonas shall comprise all costs of purchase, costs of convarsion, and ol _5-15

ircurred in bringing inventores fo iheir present location and condition. The cost of work in prggr
and finished goods includes matesals, direct lsbour and sttibutable production overhaads basp
nicrmal levelz of ackivily, E

and transport, handling, and other costs directly alibutadla to fhe acquisiion of Inventor 5
diseounts and sales rebates on substandard and obswlets goods purchased are deducted from the
custs of purchase,

Mat realisable value is the estimated salling pace in the crdinary course of business less tha eslimated
casls of completion and the asmated costs nocessary b make the sala,

Method of accountiieg for frvanianies

Imiantorias are measured wsing he weightad average method and ne recarded under (he parpetual
inveentary method.

Frovisions for deciine in vale of inventories

As of the date of the financial slelameants, provisions are recognised for obsolabe, slow-moving,
dafactive lwendory, and for inveniony stabed 8t cost kighar than net realisabla valua.

The difference batween the required batansse and the exisling balance of the provslons for a decling
in vale of imentories is incleded in cost of sales In the income stalement

Imvgntorias are writlen down o ned mealizable salue ilem by imm, For services being rendenad,
pravision is mada in rospact of each service for which a soparale selling price is charged

Malerlals and other supplies hald for use in the production of imeentories ars not wrllben down baelow
costif the finishad prodwects In which thay will be incorporatad are expecied 1o be sold 81 or above cost,

Tanglble fixed assels

Tangible fixed asseds sre measured at cost lass accumulaied depreciafion

Tengible fixed asset recognition

Tangibie foed assals ane inilialy recognized at their cosl. The cost of purchasad langinle lixad assels
cormprises the purchase price and any dirgally altiDubabe ool of Bringing (he aosels o Beir presant
locatiom and working condkion far lheir intended use, Accosfonias added b lided assets when

purchased ane recogrised separataly at thedr falr values and deducked fram the hisloncal cost of (he
respeclive angible fixved aszeis.

Depreciation
The costs of fixed assels are depreciated on a straight-ine methad over thelr estimated wselul ves,

2




WO oWow e WO MWW WM s

I m oW oWk W

18 W

2 i I o o oW o

DONGNAI PAINT CORPORATION :
Address: Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park, Road Mo, 7, An Binh Ward. Bien Hoa City, Dong Mai Province,
Wabnam —

4.6,

3T,

1A,

s

30

MOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS (GONTIMWED)

Tangiblz fixed assets [Continued)
Tha estmeted usafd ivas ara as flows:

* Buildings, struchires 08 — 285 years
= Machisery and equipment 03— 10 years
= Mglor vehicles 05— 15 years
v Managament equiprment 0rd = 06 years
Leases

Lease clagsification

Laases arg classiied ag finance leases whan the erms of the lease ransfor subsiantiaily all the rigks
and rewards of cwaarship 1o he lesses. All offer leasses are classified 8s operaling keases.

Operating leasas

Lease payments under an opesating lease are recognised as an expense on & straight-ina basis over
B leass barm,

Prapayimant

Prepayment is classified as non-current based on {keir arginal term and mainly cost relaled o prepaid
Infrastrmchurs rontals

Infrastruciure rantal (s recorded s prepald expenses which are amorlised over the rental pericd.

Liakdlities

Liabiities are classfied inlo rade payables and other payabies tased on the following rules. Trade
payables represent thoze arising frem purchesa and salo rafated transactons of goods. sarvices or
agsels and the sellar is independent of the buyer; the remaiding payables are classified as ather
payables.

Linbilibes are alsp clessified according (o the maturity date, the remaining term from the data of the
fnancial slaberments, orginal currency, amd each credstor,

Liabilities ara recoqnised at no fass than tha payment obligation.

Borravwdng costs

Capitalization of borrowing costs

Baosrawing costs direclly albibutable to the acquisition, construciion, or produclion of qualifying assets.
that necessarily take & substantial perod of ime o gét ready for their intanded use or sale, ane
capilalised ag part of tha cost of those asssts unlil Bhe assels afe put Inte use or sale.

Invastmant incoma eamed on temporary investment of borrowings is deducted from the cost of ha
regpective aasels.

Al alher barrowing costs are recognised as an axpense in the income stalement whan incurred,

13
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DOMNGHNA]I PAINT CORPORATION ) )
Address: Bian Hoa 1 Industrial Park, Road Mo, 7, &n Binh Ward, Bien Hea City, Dong Nai Provinee,
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313,

31k

a4,

315

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Accruad expenses

Acored expenzes regresent exsensas lhal will be paid in the fulere for goods or sardices racesved
Dut not yat pakd dve o lack of Invalcas or scoounting documents. These expenses are recognised as

aperating expensas of the reporting yesr.

Owrners' eeuity

Tha ovwners’ confribfad equity

Tha awners’ contribubed equily is recogrised when confributed.

Evicands

Dividands dfa recegnisad as a llabiy &6 dale of desianng dvidends,

Rezoives

Reserves are created at cortan percenbages of prolit alber ks as prasoribed in the Company's chaies
Retainad earmings

#ai profié afler income iax can ba distribuled ko sharchalders aftar the distribwlion i3 approved the
Annual Genaral Meeling of Shareholders and reserves are creatad in accordance with the Company's

Charler amd legal regulalions in Vistnam,
Revenun
Ravamire from seliing gaads

Revenua from sefing goods is maasurad al the fair value of the consideralion received of recanvable.
In most cazes, revenue is recognisad when lransberring the fsks and revards of awnership to the

buyer,
Rawantie invalving {he remdering of sendeas

Revenue of a bangaction invalving the rendering of 3ardces is recognised when the oulceaw of the
transackon can be estimaled reliably. When a transaction inveling the randering of ssrvices S
aliributabla bo saveral perods, esch periods revenee i recognised by referenca to the stage of
complellan al e and of the reporling paricd.

Daductions
Deductions include frade dscounts and sale raluims,

[(Jaductions ansing in the reporting yesr rom consemption of products, goods and services ane
recogrised ag decreanes in revenue In that year, Daduckians afising aller the end of thia reparling year
but prioe to issulng the manclal statements for the reparting year arg recognised as gacraases in
revanus of the reparting yaar Deduclions arsing after the and Sf the reporfing yesr ard aler tasuing
tha financiad sistements for fhe reporting year am racognised a5 dedreases n ravanies of e el
yEar,

Gost of sales

Gosi of sales and senvces provided raprezants iotal costs of nished producls, goods, services which
ara sald in the year in accordance wilh the matching princigle, Abnormal amounds of production costs
of Invenbories are recognized Immeadiataly in cost of salas.

14
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DOMGHAI PAINT CORPORATION
Addresa; Bian Hoa 1 Industral Park, Road Na. 7, An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Mai Provice,

Wielnam

3,186,

347,

40,

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONTINUED)

Finance axpense

Finance expenses reprasent all expanses incurred |n the raporting year which mainly includa payment
disegunl, karrowing casts, provision for impalrment of investmant in other entilies, and lossas from

mazhange rales,
Salling expense and general and administrative expanse

Seling expanses represent expenses Incurred during e process of sellng products, goods, and
rendering senvicas, which include expenses ralating to raw materals, packaging; offaring, intreducing
products, advertising products; promalion; sales commissions: product warranty; transportation costs,
leading and unbcading costs, stndry expanses (enleralinment, elc.).

General and adminisirative axpanses represent common axpanses, which include payroll costs for
office ampoyess {zalarles, wages, alowances, elc.), social Insurance, haalth insurance, trade wion
faes and unemgloyment insurance; stafionary expenses, material expenzes, deprecialion expensas
of fixad assets used for administration ackwvitiad: and rantal leense b3 wlilily services [ekclricity
expensas, walsr expenses, phoane, lax waranly oxpenses. el sundry axpenses lentertainment,
cugiomer confarence, ata,]

Taxatian
Corperate incoma 8x

Current corpovals Moo i arpanse

Curreni corporata tax expansa is diternined on the basls of tawahie ingame and the rete of corporate
imsame lax JC1T) af lhe curmant yair at 20%

Dafevrad corporala ncome e expanss

Oeferred corporate lax axpanse is detemined on tha basis of the deductible 1emparary differences,

taxable kemparary diferences and the esimated CIT rate that will be applied for the years that assals
and Babililies will be recovared. The tax rales used will be (he tax rales (and tax laws) that are in effect

at the Fnancial year and.
Deferred tax Fabilily & recegnised for all taxable temparary differencas, unlass:

»  The deferrad tax [@bility arises from the initial recognition of an assel or Eabllity in a fransaclion
witich at the time of the transaction, alfects neilher the accouming profit nor taxabls profit (ko

loss);

» Al taxable temparary dilferences associated wilh [nvesimants in subsidiaries, branches and
associates, and inlarests in joint venturas whan the paren), invesior or venturer is abie o comrol
the linving of the reversal of the temporary difierence and il is probable that tha lemporary

dlifference wil pet reverse In the foreseeable fubore.

A defarmad tax asset is recognised for all deductible lemporary déffarances to the exient that & s
probable that taxabia profit will be available against whish the deduciible lamporary differance can be

willsed, unless;

»  The daferred tax assel arisas from e initial recagnilion of an asset or labllily In a transaclion
which al the fime of bansacion, affacls nellher accounting profit nar laxable profil (te loss);

s The daterrad tax assels for all deduclble terngorary differences assoclated wilh invesiments In
subsidiaries, brarches and associates, and inderasts In joind venlures an galy recagnised whean il
is probabls that the temporary diference will reverse in the foreseeable future; and taxable profit

will e svailable against which the lemporary differance can be ubiised
15
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DOMGNA] PAINT CORPORATION
Address Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park, Road 8o, 7, An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Nai Province,
Wiatnam

118,

344,

.20,

dudH.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Tawas (Continuacd]

The carmying amount of a defered tex sagel shal ba revlewed at each balance sheat date and reduced
e the axkent that it & no longer probakle that sufficlent taxable profit will be avsdable te allow 1he
bienafit of pert or all of that defemed lax agset o be utdsed. Any such reduction shall be reverted bo
the axtent [t becomeas probable that sufficéant faxable profit will be avallabls.

Current and deferred x a6 recognibed a8 income o an expénse and incuded in profil o ss far Ge
year axcepd bo tha exlent thal the tax afses from a tansaclion or evant which i recognisad, in the
saime or 8 different yvear, direcily in equily,

Pederrad bax assels and deferred tax Sabilites are only offsat i, and only if, the Comgany has a legelly
anforeaable right bo set off current tex assats agalnst curran! tee kebilities and 1the daferred tax asaata
ardd tha defarred fax llabilfies relate fo Income taxas levied by the same laxation authanty and the
Caompany intends be aellle current lax labiites ard e9sats an a net baals or bo reallse the assets and
salile tha liabiltles simultanenusly, each fulure peried [ whch slgnifeant amaunts of delered lax
lizbilitas or assels are expechad o be selied ar recowered,

Vialue achded tax
The goods sofd and sendices fendered by the Company ara subjac! lo value added tax 10%,
Qther taxes

Cither kaxes are apglicable in acoordance with ihe prevaling kay ae in Vatnam

The tax raporls o the Comgany will be inspacied by he Tax Department. Application of the faws and
requlations oo lax o diffirent ransactions can be inlerpreded by many ways, thesefom, he tax
amownts presanted in the financial sEwmants can be amanded i sccordance with the Tax
Deparmant’s final azseszmant for the Company.

Earnlngs par share

Basic earnings por share are caleulated by dividing lhe net prof glirbutatle lo ardinary sharehalders
{afer adjusted for bones and welfare funds), by the walghted averags aumber of ordinay shares
alslanding dwing lhe year, eacheding ordinadry sheves Borght back By the Company and held a5
Eresaguny sharas,

CHlutel sarnings per shara

Diluted eamings per share are calculated by dividing the ret prefit atiributable lo ordinesy shareholdars
[after adjusted for bonus ard welfare funds), by lhe weighted average numbesr of oodinary shares
outstanding during lhe yoar and bobal ordinary shaes thal woukl be Esued on fhe ooneersion,
exeluding gedinary sharas bought back by the Cormgany and hald as treasury shares

Hegment reporting
A segereenl i a dislinguishable componant of the Comgpany that s engagad efther in producing o
provviding relabed products ar services (business segmant), or in produsing o previding products or

saviois within a parlicular esonomic enviconmend (geographical segment), which & subject bo Aske
and rewands thel ara different from those of clher Segments,
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DOMNGHAI FAINT CORPORATION ; ] ’ .
Buiclress: Bian Hoa 1 Indusinial Park, Road No. 7, An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa Cdy. Dong Nai Province,

Vistnam

MOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3,22, Relabod parties

Relaled partis ara individisats or entilles that have the akbility, direcily or indirecty hrough on -':_|
intarmediarias, to control the Company o ane coniroflad by, or are subject 1o comman control

Campany. Asscciates, individuals owning, directly ar indiractly, an interest in the veting powerial fhe
Company that gives tham significant infuense over the Compary, key management I,
inclieding the management and officers of U Company and ciose family members ar asseg of
sueh individusia ane sizo considerad 1o be ralsled parlies. 3
4, ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FOR ITEM3 SHOWHN N THE STATEMENT OF FIMAMCIAL
POSITION
4.1. Cash
As at As al
31 Dec, 2024 01 Jan, 2024
WD WHD
Cash i hand 154, 703468 BO4 626,032
Cash o banks 4,233 581 081 2604 475597
Total 4,588, 484,669 _ 4,200,000,623

4.2,  Gurrent trade rocolvables

Aun at As ag
31 Dee, 2024 01 Jan. 2024

VND WND
PG Viet Nam Company Limibad 4 B0 TO0.B25 2,903,680, 081
Gia Gia Phat Trading and Service Company Limited 9 258 GEEE20 2,384,081, 111
Othar cushamers {7 22 365 VAR &OD 17,804,935, 743
Total 29,235 045,261 23 098 G55 G5

(*1'As at 31 Decambar 2024, ary companent of curnent rede recevables from othar cusiomers was
le=ms than 10% lotal current iradae recairables.

Current trada recaivables of 31 aszt WD 15 bilion have bean used as collaleral, pledpe, or security
far lnams — Refar to Meto 4.11,

43, Doubtful debts

Asoat 3 Dee, 2024 Hoa gt 04 Jan, 2024
VHDO WD
Recovarable Rarcowharabin
Coslt arnakint st amasn

Credrchne rade receivables 2288800158 19,710,700 2182185 245 20,000,000

The managamaent assessed he abdity to recover the overdus receivables a5 low because receivablog
has been outstanding for many Years

17
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DONGHAI PAINT CORPORATION ; :
Address: Bien Haa 1 Indusirial Park. Road Mo, 7, An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa Cily, Dong Mai Paovince,

Wiabnam

4.7,

MOTES TO THE PINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONTIMUED)

Hon - eurrent propaymaents

Rapresenting land rental and Infrastrocture usage costs at Ho Nal Induatrisl Park, Ho Mai 3 Commune,
Trang Bom District, Dang Mal Province with a leasa barm from 08 June 2022 to 31 May 2055

Carrent trade payablos

As at 31 Deg, 2024

As at 01 Jan. 2024

VHD VHD
Faystla #ayable
Amaunt amount Amauni arpount
Trade peyables o
refaded pariles - . 65,681,038 65,691,008
Trade payables:
Da Trang
Tranapor and
Trading
Praduction
Coompaany Limibed |, 763,047 188 1,763,047 168 2,369,632, 800 2369 832,400
Qrther supplers (Y 15,611,275,814 15,611,276, 814 16,490,030, 531 16,410,030, 531
Tofal ¥ AT 526,002 17,374, 326,00 I S84, TikD 18,845,554, 760

{*] s at 31 December 2024, any component of curant trade payabies 1o alher suppliers was lass han

10% of 1he total current Irade payabdas.
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DONGNAL PAINT CORPORATION ) . :
Address: Bien Hoa 1 Industrial Park, Read Mo, 7, An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dang Nai Provinca,

Wiatnam B

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

442, Bonus and weelfars func

Yaur 20d4 Yoar 2023

_ WHD WD

A at 01 January §,673,105,001 4 936 BT 461
Distibution in year 1,665,990,835 3,284 356,620
Okt incressa 7615000 1,480,000
Ligitigy in year {3,343, 551,780 12,551,515,000)
Az al 31 Decambar 4,003,158 036 6,673,105001
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DORGHAI PAINT CORPORATION

Addrags: Blan Hoa 1 Industial Park, Road No. 7, An Binh Ward, Bien Hoa City, Dong Mal Provinca,

Wielniain g

HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS EEUI'-F-I'HUE[JI

4,13.2. Dedadls of owiters® equity

As al Az al

31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan, 2024

WHD WHD

Sonadazi Carparalion 4,110, B85 000 9 110,880,000

Capital conlributed by othars 24,253 480,000 21,253,400,000

Tatal 30,364,360,000 30,364 360,000

4133, Sharos

Az at Az al

H Dee, 2024 04 Jan, 2024

Number of ordinary shares regiziened for Eue 3,056,436 3,036,436

Mumbes of ordinary shares sald to public 3,036,436 3,038,436

Mumber af aedinary shares outstanding 3055 436 43,0085 436

Par vahse per outstanding share: WMD 10,000 per share,
4,134, Basle and diluted sarnings per share

Yaar 2024 Year 2023

WHD VHD

Predib adber lax aliributable to ordingry shara holders B, 044, 944, 307 16,468 647,332

Dstribastion to Bomus and weiface Rund (*] {1,665 840 505 13,284 208 520)
Earnings for (he purpose of calculaling basic and dilutad

eEMiNgs par sharg 7,183,557 612 13,104 290, 652
Weightod svorage numbar of ordinary shares oulstanding

duing Ehe year {*%) 3,036,436 3,ME435

Basic and diluled sarnings por ahare 2,366 d 342

{8 Bonus and wellare furd deducted when calculafing basis and diuled eamings per share in year

2024 which iz provizionally calouaied

1**) Weighied average number of ordinary shares oulstending during fhe year was caloulated as

folliows:

Year 2024 Yoar 2023
Cadinary shanes gutstanding at the beginning of year 3,035 436 1,518,210
Impacd of 1,518,218 ondinary shares jssued on 27 Ociobar
223 from developrment investment fund s adjustad b
increasa  acoording b the regulation of Vielnemese
Accounting Standard Mo, 30 1,518 218
Weightad averages aumber of ardinary shares
oudstanding during the peried 3,036,438 1036434

268
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DONGHNAI PAINT CORPORATION

Addre=s: Blen Hoa 1 Induskrial Park, Rioad Mo, 7. An Binh \Ward, Blen Hoa City, Dong Mai Provinee,

Wiglnam

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)

4.13.5. Dividends

Cp=ning balanca

Dividends payabla

Dividands paid of erdinary shares [*)
Ending balance

") OF which, dividands paid to refated paities —
Refer o Mote 8

4,128, Caiposate funds

Az gt 01 Jan. 2024
Distributad n year

As at 31 Dec. 2024

4.14.  Off statoment of financial pogition items

Leased assets: Tolal minimum amount of irrevocable

operating leases classHied by lerm!

Within ane year
Laber than cne year bul within five yaars

Labar than five yesrs

Total

Dioubtiul dabts wrilken off:

Writhan off aceosding to Board of Direclors Resolubion

dabad 23 July 2013

Writlen off according te Beard of Direclors Resalubion

elated 31 Juby 2015

|
Yaar 2024 Year 2023 'I
WHD VHD :
4 554 454 000 5,313 753,000
{4554 B54 000} [5.313.?%,0%
R
= "1_
{1,830, 584 000] {1,922, 208,00
Davalapriant k
investmant Iund thar funds |
WHD WD {
3,507 580,230 1,516, 200,000
A4, 682, Ta4 17T - |
21,270,364 407 1,618,200, 000
Az at Az at
31 Dac. 2024 04 Jan. 2024
VD VHD
283 853 624 283 553 528
05, 252,061 G888, 252 061
2,470,507 430 2,745,008 244
3,440,713, 408 3,716,214, 233
M oat As at
31 Do, 2024 01 Jam, 2024
YND WHE
i
333,868,504 A5 686,504 it
1,411,834, 760 1,111,934,750
]
i
I
; |
27 |
|
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DOMNGHNAL PAINT CORPORATION i
Address: Blen Hoa 1 Indusirial Park, Road Mo, 7, An Binh Ward, Bian Hoa City, Dang Mal Pravince,

‘Winlnam Sl

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONTINUED)
5 ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FOR ITEMS SHOWN IN THE INGCOME STATEMENT

1.  Revenue from selling goods and rendering services

Year 0E4 Year 20E)
VRO VHD
Sale of goods Ba,132, 342 903 9,728,002 615
Zale of paint procassing 28,044,010, BB2 24,602 572 583
Tatal 124,476,353, 745 116, 390,675,198
OF which, the rovenue fom seling goods and
rendenng sanvces ba relaled paries — Refer ko Mote
8 12,121,880 43 350,976
. fir 3 Dedusticns
Yoar 2024 Woar 2023
VHD WD
Trada discounts A 2087 9351 045 4,539 430,938
Sales relums 540,431,200 1215708 5334
Total 4,826,382,245 5855137592
53, Coat of sales
Yoar 2024 Wear M2l
WD VD
Cast of merchandisa sald B4 157 G48 315 81,089 476,821
Coal ol palnt preceasaing 20,688,025 905 13,923 743 630
Todal B4, 728, 6TE 218 80,013,219,304
B, Financa Incoma
Yoar 2024 Yeor 2023
WD WHD
alne from realized axshangs diffarencas 1987823 12,671,500
Depasil inlesesy 13516675 24,075,202
Ingoma from liguidation and sala of financial
msasimants - 10,208,925,000
Total 33,304,908 10,245,572 02

The linance incame this year has significanily decreased compared be the pavious pear because e
Corngamy sold al ils shares in Sonadazi Chau Dus Joint Stock Company last year and recorded a
prodfited WD 10,2 Bllion,
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DONGHNAI PAINT CORPORATION
Addrass: Bian Hoa 1 Industdal Pask, Road No. 7, An Binh Ward, Bisn Hoa Cily, Dong Nai Pravince, |
Wiatnam 1'
" i
NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) fl
Il
6.6, Flnance expense I
i
Year 2024 Year 2023 |
VHD VHD E
Paymenl dsceunis 4,262,241,605 3,387 377,360 B |
Intaras! axponse 1,054, 586 433 1,306,023 3353 B .
Provision far decline in vaiue of investmant '
impairmeni loss 1003, 852 457 - _T|
Losses from exchange differgnces 30,944 407 16,508 527 g
1§
Total 4,470 930,502 4,702,006,519 ]
58, Salling expensa
Waar 2024 Year 2023
VHD VND
Matarial and packaging expenge 1,163,328,667 1,$29,422,181 i
Depreciation expense 70,400,788 52,144,074 i
Trade promolion eXpenses 4,234 829,038 2,411,264,611
Rendarad sarvices oxponses 516,963,718 $16,694 403 .::
Sundry expenses In cash #4084 822 538 2022462, 784 K
Total B 460,344,064 G, 732178 033
The selling expenses tis year heve increased by approximately 26% compared [0 previous year,
mainly due le tha Company’s intonsified (rade pramotion activiies, moluding promolions and [
achverlising ]
57, Generl and sdminisirative axpanse |

Ermgioyee sxpenses

blaters| expenses

Office slalionery axpeenses
Depreciation expense

Taxes, fees and changs
Infrasliucliora UBEgS BERONSES
Provision for doulllul debls
Rendered servicas sgpanses
Suirdry aupenses In cash

Total

The general ard administalive axpansas this year hava incréased by more than 20% comparad o
previous year, mainly due to the Company's additional recognition of infrastruciure usage casis fom

privioug years.

Year 2024 Year 2083
VHD VMO
6,257,651 563 6,096,652, 891
ERF E21 416 fd44,173,243
112,243,172 99,451,661
TR ETIOTE 294,715, 544
D& A60,430 128,248 573
3.230.614,333 700,000,500
o053, 143 23,884,816
ETI,EE?,HE 448,063,789
3,913,235,001 3.509,110,542
14,308,622 310 14,889,399 050
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DOMNGNA| PAINT CORPORATION

Bodrass: Bian Hoa 1 Industrial Park, Road Mo 7, An Binh Ward, Bian Hoa City, Dong Mal Province,

Wielnem

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

5.8. Othar Income

Income from warehouse 'sasing and management
Incame from surplus matarials and goads
Cithar incame

Tatal

9. Production and business costs by alamant

Matarial expaneas
Erngloyes expense
Capreciafion expensa
Provision for doubiful dehts
FRandered sarvices sxponsos
Sy expanses n GEsh

Taotal

510, Currenl corporals income lax axpansa

Yaar 2024 Year 2023

VND VNG
3,169,204, B84 3,150,530,048
618,252, 780 472,882 4585
£38 870,674 190,318,073
4,024,328 333 4,243 731 006
Toar 2024 Year 2023
WD WHD
S 8 T 0T, 060 51,607,202, 203
27,523,405, 204 265,271,402, 406
892 121,772 1,022 192 594
98,053,183 23,094 B16
13,829,006,407 10,152 436 6v@
8,930,032, 721 6,947 404 688
__105,720,687,763 __ 95,024,843.874

CIT tpanse cakculxied an ihe mxable noome of the cumment year is determined a5 fallows:

Accownting proft before tax for the year
Add; Adjustments according to CIT law
Less: Adjusimants acconding fo CIT law
Taxatla income from business activiies
Current GIT rate

Currerd ST expanzs from business aclivities

Current CIT expense for tha year

Year 2024 Year 2023
YND VKD
11,166.440,413 20,748, 786,533
TE0, 446,044 1,768,335,396
 (#13,425,026) (413,425 928)
11,532,460,531 22.106,686,003
20% 20%
2,306,492.108 4,421,139,201
2,305, 492.106 4,424,138,201

The adjstmenla for lhe increases {decraasas) in fhe faxable income are mainky ren - 13 - dedictible

erms as regutated by GIT law, such &s:

¢  Expenses withoul invoices and vouchers,
" Acerual expenses wilhoud nwece;

=  Ramunerafion of ron-oparstional Board of Direclars
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DONGNAL PAINT CORFORATION
Acddress: Blen Hoa 1 Indusiral Park, Boad Me, 7, An Binh Ward, Bien Hos City, Oong Mal Provines,

Wielnam

HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS mﬂH'I;'tHI.IEB]
B ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FOR ITEMS SHOWN IN THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT

d.1.  Casl receipts from kans in the yaar

Yoar 2024 Yaar 2003
VND VND_
Cash recelpds from bsans undar normal confracts AT 04T 204, 257 36,207 47, 168
6.2 Cash repayments of prineipal amounis barrowed
Year 2024 Year 2023
VD VND
Cash repaymant of principal amounts under normal
BOnbachs {35.849.001,237) {42,071, 764,871

(See lhe nexf page)
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DOMNGMAL PAINT CORPORATION
Address: Blan Hea 1 Industrial Park, Road Mo, 7, An Binh \Ward, Bien Hea Cily, Dong Nal Province,

Vigtnanm

MOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS [{:DF-I.TIHIJEI:I]
. RELATED PARTIES

Mo, Listaf related paries Belationshin
1. Sonadar Corporation Significan! influence sharaholoer
2, Lonadazi Enveiriomient Joint Stock Company Feligw compary
& Sonadazt Services Joint Stack Comparny Falen company
4, Dang Wel Waler Joint Stock Company Fallow company

Tha company has the same kay
5. Thien Mhat Thien Compary Leniled managamant personnel

The company has the sams kay
6. Phuang Dang Campany Limitad IMENEgement personmed
T Baard of Directors, managemant, and Superdisory  Key managemen! parsaanel

Comrtles

Dharing the reparting yesar, the Campany has had relaled party ransaclions a5 follods

Year 2024 Yoar Z023
VHD VKD
Fendering sepvicas — Rader to Mota 5.1:
Phuong Dang Camgany Limited 12,121,850 42 260,475
Year 24 Year 2033
VD — .
Purchasing and receiving sevices;
Sonadezi Comporalion 240,455,263 206 516,880
Dang Bai Waler Jaint Stock Company 108,420,000 0, TG, 000
Sonadezi Enviromant Joint Stock Garmgrany 46,000,000 8,280,000
Sonadezl Serdces Joint Shock Company 29,147 475 6,776,005
Thien Nhat Thien Company Lima&ad = 2478214, 326
Total 424 033 742 2098, 748,210
Year 2024 Yenr 2033
VND VHD
Dividencls paig:
Spnadegi Carpoealion 1, 356,632,000 1,694 404, 000
Mr Mguwyen Pham Thuyen 12,000,580 14,080, 0G0
Mir Moirpen Dug Nhien 18,800,000 23,100,000
Mr Dz Dinh De 27,052,000 2E4 Bd4_ 000
M W Meuyen Thi Harh 5,100,000 B,B50,000
Total - Rafer o Molo 4.13.5 1.,630,564,000 1,922 398,000
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DONGMAI PFAINT CORPORATIIN

Addrass: Bian Hoa 1 kndusiial Park, Road Mo, 7, An Binh Ward, Bien Hea Gy, Dong Nai Provines,

Wigdman
WOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS [CONTINUED)
a. RELATED PARTIES ({CONTINUED]
Remunserations of the Board of Déreclars, the managesment, and the Supervisory Commiltes am as
Tallows,
Year 2024 Yeur 2023
Hame Poeltion WHD WD
Mr Mguyen Fham Thuypan Chairparson cum Vice E60, 246,000 541,345,000
Gareral Director
Mr Mguyen Duc Nhien Wice charpersan cam 634,547,000 GB0,673.000
Geraral Directar
Kir Dao Dinh Oa tarnimar of tha Baard af 113,882,000 112582 000
Direchors
Mir Tran Trung Kien Mambar af the Baard af 113,880 000 112,692 000
Dhrechors
Bs W kguyen Thi Hanh Member af the Board of 113,502,000 109,892,000
Directors
Mz Huynh Mauyen Thanh 433,380,000 382,256,000
Uyen Wice Saneral Diector
M= D:]n-g L Bich Phuang Head of Supervisany 113,892,000 112 582 000
Commiliee
Mz Bud Thi Thuy Lien Member of Superdsary G4, 806,000 G, 308, D00
Committeo
Mg Trinh Thi Mgee Huong Marmbar of Supervisory B, 956,000 Bk e, 010
Caommiltes
Todal 2,2#-4:141.[““! iﬂTE,E-l-l].ﬂﬂ-l]

. COMMITMENT UNDER OPERATING LEASES

The Campany rents ad and factories under oparabing leases. The leases are for an avarage penad
ol 4B yaars, wih loed renkals ovar (s same year

Year 2024 Year 20231
VHD VND

Faymants under oparating leases recognised as an
expense n the year 238,518 650 238690, 850

As ot 31 December 2024, the Company has outslanding commitments under nan-cancaliable
oparating loazas that fall dua as follews)

A5 al Mg al

31 Do, 2024 01 Jan, 2024

VND - VHD

Within one year 203,953, %24 ZB3958 970
Livlar han one year bul within live yeas G86, 252,061 GG 252 081
Later than five yecrs 2 ATO 50T 4240 2 a5 000 Zdd
Total 3,440,713 409 3,716,214,233
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DONGHAl PAINT CORPORATION
Address: Blen Hoa 1 Indusinal Park, Rosd Mo, ¥, An Binh Ward, Bian Hoa City, Dong Mai Pravinces,
Vietnam

MOTES TO THE FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS [CONTINUED)
10. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The fallowing comparative tigures heve been restated:

Financial stalamen nokes (seserpded i
Aa at
01 Jan. 2024 31 Dae, 2023
VYHO VHD
' (A% proviowshy
(Raclazsified) reparbad)
Irvanories:
Raw maderials 7,019 908,889 F.019.906 8588
Tools and supplies FTE,E0B, 14T FTAEOE 147
Semi-finished goads £25,002 800 :
Finishad goods 13,147 635,648 13,823 430 350
Marchandiss 2,108 522 2104 522
Taotal 21.6:34,0683,016 21,624,063, 016

Thi restatemant for nobas of inventary iberms is b align with the presentalion of the inancial statements
for the current financial period, Tha managament believes thal the restatoment will provide usakd
information to the users of the inancial statermants.

1. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING YEAR

o oflwe matter or circumnslance las ansen since 31 December. 2024 that hes slgnificantly affected,
or may significantly affect the Company's aperalions, the resulls of those operations, or the Company's
state of affairs in fulwre financial years.
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SoMgiven Duc Nhien Huyrh Thi Thanh Huong Mguyen Bac Trung
Ganaral Diroctor Chiaf Acosunbani Praparar

Dong Mai Province, 20 February 2025
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SONADEZ] CORPORATION SOCTALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
DONGNAI PAINT CORFPORATION Independence - Freedom — Happiness

Dong Nai, March 3, 2023

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
Regarding the inspection and supervision of produoction and business activities in 2024
and term V (2020 - 20235) at DongNai Paint Corporation

To: The General Meeting of Shareholders of DongNai Paint Corporation
Pursuant to the Charter of Organization and Operation of DongNai Paint Corporation;
Pursuant to the functions and duties of the Board of Supervisors;

Pursuant to the Regulations on Operation of the Board of Supervisors.

The Board of Supervisors reports to the General Meeting of Sharcholders the results of the
mspection and supervision of production and busimess activities in 2024 and tenn V {2020 -
2025) at DongMai Paint Corporation with the following specific contents:

PART 1

Evaluation of the company's production and business activitles and the activities of
the Board of Supervisors in 2024

A. APPRAISAL OF THE REPORTS SUBMITTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
TO THE GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS IN 2024:

I. Aundited 2024 financial statements:

Based on the Company’s 2024 financial statements audited by RSM Vietnam Auditing
and Consulting Co., Ltd., the Board of Supervisors has appraised and agreed on the following
issues:

The Company's 2024 financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
finaneial position as of December 31, 2024, as well as the resulls of praduction and business
activities and cash flow for the fiscal year ended on that date, in accordance with Vielnamese
Accoumting Standards, Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System, and relevant legal
regulations on the preparation and presentation of financial statements.

I. Report on prodoction and business activities and Report on the activities of the
Board of Directors (BOD) in 2024:

The report on production and business activities in 2024 fully and truthfully reflects the
results of production and business activities and internal corporate governance of the Company in
2024,

The report on the activities of the BOD in 2024 accurately and fully reflects the activities
of the BOD in directing the implementation of the Reselution of the General Meeting of
Shareholders, directing and supervising the Company's production and business activities,
supervising the General Divector, and other tasks in accordance with the authority of the BOD.

B. RESULTS OF MONITORING OF THE COMPANY'S OPERATIONAL AND
FINANCIAL STATUS:

o g



Through the process of monitoning the activities at the Company in 2024, the Board of Supervisors

has the following assessments:
L. Produetion and business situation in 2024

1. Results of implementing the Resolution of the General Meeting of Sharcholders

on the production and business plan:

Actanl Percentage

No. Indicator Unit Plan 2024 2024 of
N _ ActualPlan
I | Total Reverue %" 114,000 123706 |  108.51%
2 | Profit after 1a Million 7.74% 8,850 114.22%
rofit after tax VND » B3 22%
3 | Return on Equity (ROE) S 21,58 15,89 B7.53%

Liabilities payable to the | Million

4 State Budget VD §.000 5480 106.00%

1.1 Total revenue
fn which:
- Net revenue from sales and services
- Financial activities revenue
- Other income

1.2 Total costs: 112,549,254,374 VND
I which:

]
"

VND 123,705,694,787

VIND 119,647,971,540

VND 33,394,909
VYIND 4,024 328,338

- Cost of goods sold VND 84, 726,673,218
- Financial activity cxpenses VYMND 4.470,930,992
- Costs to sell VNI 8.460,346,058

- Enterprise management expenses
- Other expenses

1.3 Total profit before tax

1.4 Corporate income tax

1.5 Profit after corporate income tax

VND 14,308,622,310

VND 582,679,796

VND 11,156,440,413

VND 2. 306,492,106
VNI 8,849,948,307

In 2024, the Company exceeded the plan set by the General Meeting of Shareholders’
Resolution, as reflected in the total revenue reaching 108.51% and profit after tax reaching
114.22%,.

With the achieved business results, the Company provisionally allocated funds
according to the 2024 GMS Resolution, specifically: VIND 2,212 million for the Development
Investment Fund, VIND 1,150 million for the Reward and Welfare Fund, 177 million VND for



the Community Social Fund, and 339 million VND for the Board of Directors Reward Fund
from the 2024 profit after rax.

2. Investment and asset acquisition status:

In 2024, the Company invested in and procured a spectrometer for production. The
investment, procurement, and handover of assets were carried out according 1o the plan and
authorized approvals.

3. Financial investment status:
As of 31/12/2024, the Company's financial investment includes VND 819 million in

shares of Nhon Trach [nvestment Joint Stock Company. The Company also set aside a provision
for financial investment of VIND 104 mullion.

IL Company's financial status as of 31/12/2024:

1. Structure of total assets and total linbilities and owner's equity as of 31/1272024;

l As of As of

il BT | CODE\ 4 122024 01/01/2024
A | CURRENT ASSETS 100 53,058,109947 | 48,206,682,488
1 |Cashandcashequivalents | 110 |  4,588484,559|  4.209,000,623
IT | Short-term receivables 130 27,869, 367 682 21,733,398.811
1 | Inventories 40 | 20600257706|  21547.882,220
1V | Other current assets [ 50 716,400,834
B | NON-CURRENT ASSETS | 200 | 56,274,647,758|  56,951,544,687
.I Long-term receivables 210 750,000,000
1 |Pixedasses 220 1,165,944,996 1,471,356,953
Ml | Long-term financial investments | 250 715,047,543 819,000,000
IV | Othernoncurrentassets | 260 | 54393,655219|  S391LIST.74
TOTAL ASSETS 270 | 109,332,757,705|  105,158,227,175
C | LIABILITIES 300 42,397,189.957 | 40,851,963,039
I | Short-term liabilities 310 42,197,189,957 | 40,164,272,489
T | Long-term liabilities 130 200,000,000 687,690,550
D | OWNER'S EQUITY 400 66,035,567,748 | 64,306,264,136 |
1 |EBquity 410 66,935,567,748 | 64,306,264,136
1| Owner's investment capital 41l | 30364360000  30,364,360,000
[ 2 T{n‘aleln:'r_pﬂ'!ertt investment fund | 4!-3 | . ﬂiﬁj{m? __55_ ;.‘-::!_?._.5315.-2—3-{}
3 | Other equity funds m_r __I_,ﬁ]S,Enﬂ.ﬂDﬂ__ 1,518,200,000
4 | Undistributed profit 421 13,782,643,341 | 25.836,123,906
fff;j‘;’g:j’;}* Iﬁ"‘ﬁi’ﬁ‘:ﬁiﬁﬂ’ 42la ERILIZ2E06| 15122130194
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As of As tr_f

No. INDICATOR CODE 31/12/2024 01/01/2024

O
Undistribured profit jor the 4971470535 10,713,993,712

period 421k
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
OWNER’S EQUITY 40 109,332,757,705 105,158,227,175
2. Assessment:

- Fixed assets: In 2024, the Company invested in and procured machinery and
equipment for production with a value of YVIND 387 million, which formed fixed assets.
Concurrently, the Company liquidated two automatic color mixing machines used for over 10
vears, demaged and no longér needed, with an original value of VIND 235 million, flly
depreciated, and a recovery value of VND 25 million; the Company also reduced a color
comparison machine with an original value of VIND [20 million and a colorimeter with an
original value of VND 650 million, both long-used, damaged, irreparable, and fully depreciated.

The total original value of fixed assets as of 3 1/1272024 was YVIND 31,744 miblion.
The Company's depreciation in 2024 was VND 692 million, accumulated depreciation was
VN 30,578 million, and the remaining value was YND 1,166 million.

- Inventories: As of 31/12/2024, the Company’s inventory value was VND 20,666
million. This includes: VND 7,783 million in raw materials and supplies; VIND 12,057 million
in finished goods, and VND 826 million in tools, supplies, semi-finished goods, and
merchandise.

The Company has sel aside a provision for inventory devaluation of 63 million VND
for raw matenals, supplies, and finished goods.

- Receivables and payables: as of 31/12/2024

Receivahles:

o Short-term receivables: VIND 27,869 million, including;

+ Short-term receivables from customers - VND 29,225 million
+ Short-term prepaymenis to sellers - VD 45 million
+  Other short-term receivables 3 VND 869 million
+ Allowance for. doubtful debts - VIND (2,270) million

Payables: 42,397 million VND, including:

# Short-term liabilities: VND 42,197 million, mainly shorl-lerm pavables to scllers
of VNI 17,374 million; short-term accrued expenses of YND 3,373 million; payable to
employees of VND 2,931 million; taxes and payments to the State of VND 825 million;
cusiomer prepayments, other payables, and reward and welfare funds of VIND 17,694
million, :

o Long-term debt: VIND 200 million
I Implementation Status of the 2024 General Meeting of Sharcholders Resolution:

- The Board of Directors and Board of Management have implemented the Resolution
of the 2024 General Meeting of Sharcholders, including distributing the after-tax profit of 2023;



paying remuneration and bonuses to the Board of Directors and Board of Supervisors according
to the Resolution; signing a 2024 financial statement audit contract with RSM Vietnam Auditing
and Consulting Limited Liability Company; implementing the 2024 production and business
plan; and terminating the operation of the Bac Ninh Branch from 01/09/2024.

- The Board of Directors approved the resolution to pay 2023 dividends in cash at a
rate of | 5%/par value of shares.

C. EVALUATION OF THE MANAGEMENT AND ADMINISTRATION OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

I. Evaluation of the Board of Directors' Activities:

- The Board of Directors consists of 05 members, including 02 members directly
managing the Company. The members of the Board of Directors have actively supported the
Board of Management in directing the Company's production and business activitics.

The meetings of the Board of Directors are all in accordance with the law and the
Company's Charter, Members of the Boord of Supervisors attended all meetings.

According to the Resolution of the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, the
Board of Directors held 04 meetings and 06 written consultations to direct and erient production
and business objectives and decide on arising issues in the Company's management,

The agenda and working content were sent to the members of the Board of Directors and
Board of Supervisers for prior review. Discussions ensured democracy, resulting in high
agreement and consensus among the members of the Board of Directors and Board of

Supervisars,

IL. Evaluation of the Board of Management's Activities:

- The Board of Management consists of 03 members. The General Director has assigned
tasks within the Board of Management reasonably, and each member has promoted and upheld

their role and responsibilities in their work,
= The Board of Management has implemented the Resolutions and Decistons of the Board

of Directors; performed management and administration reasonably and effectively in
accordance with the law and the Company's Charter.

111. Evaluation of the Coordination between the Board of Supervisors, the Board
of Directors, the Board of Management, Management Staff, and Shareholders:

The Board of Supervisors is invited to attend the meetings of the Board of Directors
to grasp the Company's production and business situation as well as the decisions of the Board
of Directors and the Board of Management, facilitating timely and convenient supervision.

Management staff have coodinated to provide documents and records to help the
Board of Supervisors complete inspection and supervision tasks effectively.

Regarding Shareholders: During the year, the Board of Supervisors did not receive any
requests or complaints from Shareholders,
D. ACTIVITIES OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

- The Board of Supervizors consists of 03 members, The Board of Supervisors has
performed its functions and duties in accordance with the Company's Charter. The duties of each
member are specifically assigned as follows:
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No. Member Assigned duties

1 | Dang Le Bich Phuong | - Review and inspect the implementation of the Resolutions of
- Head of the Board of | the General Meeting of Sharcholders; ’

Supervisors - Review the reasonableness of issued documents in the

company’s praduction, business, and financial operations;

- Inspect accounting records and verify the consistency between

vouchers, invoices, and accounting books;

- Review and inspect the implementation of the annual

production and business plan;

- Inspect preduction and business expenses;

- Review and inspect the implementation of profit distribution,

allecation, and use of the company's funds in accordance with

legal regulations;

- Review and inspect financial reports periodically;

- Other tasks within the responsibilities of the Board of

Supervisors.

Trinh  Thi Ngoc |- Inspect the signing and exccution of cconomic contracts
Huong - Member between the company and contractors;
- Inspect salary expenses and salary deductions;

- Monitor the increase and decrepse of fxed assets and
Instrument and tools;

- Coordinate the periodic review of financial reponts,

I3

3 | Bui Thi Thuy Lien - |- Review and inspect the signing and execution of economic
hMember contracts between the company and customers;

- Review and inspect receivables and payables of customers;
- Review and inspect the import, export, and inventory of raw

.....

- Based on the 2024 operating plan, the Board of Supervisors has implemented the
following tasks:

+ Bupervise the activities of the Board of Directors, supervise the management and
administration of production and business activities of the Board of Management; review the
legality and procedures for issuing Resolutions and Decisions of the Board of Directors and the
Board of Management in management work.

+ Appraise the 2024 interim and annual financial reports, monitor recording, update
accounting documents and books. Coordinate with the independent awdit firm 1o review material
accounting and financial reporting errors to assess the fimess and repsonableness of the
financial statements, and monitor the implementation of the audil unil's recommendations,

- The Board of Supervisors held repular meetings, assigned specific tasks o each
member, developed a plan to inspect and supervise the production and business activities amnd
the management and administeation of the Board of Directors and the Board of Management

= The Board of Supervisors held 03 meetings, the content of which passed the following
issLes:




+ Approved the dreaft Report of the Board of Supervisors on the inspection and
supervision of production and business activities in 2023,

+ Approved the 2024 operating plan of the Board of Supervisors, assigning tasks on
imspection and supervision to each member of the Board of Supervisors,

+ Approved the draft Report of the Board of Supervisors on the inspection and
supervision of production and business activities for the first 06 months of 2024 at DongNai
Paint Corporation,

- Remuneration and bonus in 2024:

l. | Dang Le Bich Phuong Head of the BoS 113,992,000 VD

Member of the

2. | Bui Thi Thuy Lien BoS G4, 956,000 YND
A, | Tosnh Thi Nizoc Hoomg gfs‘“"‘*“ of the 64.996,000 VND

D. ASSESSMENT OF RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

Transactions between the Company, Company’s subsidiaries, other companies in which the
Company holds more than fifty percent (509} of the charter capital with members of the Board
of Directors, the General Director and their related persons; imnsactions between the Company
amd companies in which members of the Board of Direclors are founders or managers during
the 03 years immediately preceding the transaction date have been fully disclosed in the
Corporate Governance Report 2024 dated 29/01/2025 on the website of Dongnai Paint
Corporation.

E. RECOMMENDATIONS:
- Focus on product quality (o maintain the company’s brand reputation.

- Create links between member companies in Sonadezi Corporation to promote DONASA
brand products.

Strengthen management and balance inventory in sccordance with the production process;
strictly control production costs and balance cash flow to reduce pressune on interest expenses.

Continue o improve the company’s internal regulations, processes, and management
regulations to improve the company’s management and administration efficiency.

- Regarding the debt situation, it is proposed that the Board of Directors and the Board
of Management strengthen and urge the collection of debts to limit capital occupation and ensure
capital for production and business activities, Resolutely handle long overdue receivables.

F. WORK PLAN OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS IN 2025:
- Inspect amd supervise the activities of the Board of Directors and supervise the

management and administration of production and business activities of” the Board of

Management,

- Monitor the company's production and business activities through financial
statements, financial supervision reports, and other reports as preseribed by the Company.
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- Coordinate with the Company’s functional departments to monitor and inspect the
implementation of the Company's Board of Directors’ directives and resolutions.

- Appraise the Company's quarterly, semi-annual, and annual financial statements.
- Perform other tasks according to the functions, duties, and powers of the Board of
Supervisors.
PARTII

Report on the assessment of the company's production and business activities and the
activities of the board of supervisors For term v (2020 - 2025)

A. REFPORT ON INSPECTION AND SUPERVISION RESULTS OF PRODUCTION
AND BUSINESS ACTIVITIES FOR TERM V (2020-2025)

L Evaluation of the vesults of Term V (2020-2025)

Based on the audited financial statements of the Company for cach year. The Board of
Supervisors reports the summarized resulls of the implementation of the basic targets in Term
V (2020-2025) as tollows:

Unit: million YND

Year Year Year Year Year
Gl MR 2020 | 2021 022 | 2023 2024
1 | Charter capital 15,182 15,182 15,182 30,364 30,364
2 | Total revenue 147349 [ 122,320 139,843 123,085 123,706
Profit after corporate .
R b omnsiains 11,494 13,028 15,726 |6, 469 8,850
4 | Return on equity (ROE) 15.71% | 425000 48.07% | 46.92% | 8. 89%
Liabilities payables to the
5 State Budget 10,233 8,536 10,898 6,361 8,480

During Term V (2020-2025), despite many economic fluctuations, especially the
prolonged Covid pandemic, the Company's production and business activities faced many
difficulties, leading to uneven revenue growth. However, with the efforts of the Board of
Management, the Company always exceeded the profit plan approved by the General Meeting
of Sharcholders.

I1. Report evaluating the coordination between the Board of Supervisors, the Board of
Directors, and the Board of Management.

The Board of Supervisors is invited to attend meétings of the Board of Directors and is
provided with all relevant content upon request.

The Board of Supervisors has received all Resolutions and Decisions of the Board of
Directors, reports on production and business activities, and the Company's financial sitwation.



Managers have coordinatad to provide documents, data, and records to help the Board of

Supervisors complete the inspection and supervision work,
B. ACTIVITIES OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

duties
Superv

Diuring Term ¥ (2020-2025), the Board of Supervisors has performed its functions and
in accordance with the Company's Charter. Based on the activity plan, the Board of
isors has camied out the following tasks:

Inspecting and supervising the activities of the Board of Directors, supervising the
management and administration of production and business activities of the Board of

M anagement;

Contributing opinions to the Board of Directors on production and business activities
at the Company in regular meetings of the Board of Directors;

Participating in contributing opinions to build the Company’s regulations and rules;
Checking mid-year and annual financial reports,

Reviewing anral financial statements and submitting them to the Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders,

C. COMMENTS

In Term V (2020-2025), with the continuous efforts of all employees and managers, and

with the close attention, support, and direction of the Board of Management and the Board of
Directors, the Company’s production and business activities have achieved good results, with
profit exceeding the plan set by the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders. Therefore, the
Company needs to take advantage of available opportunities, continue to build the DONASA
brand, focus on creating and developing new products, applying advanced techniques and
technologies to enhance product quality,

This is the report of the Board of Supervisors on the inspection and supervision of

produc

tion and business activities in 2024 and Term V (2020-2025) at Dongnai Paint

Cotporation. The Board of Supervisors respectfully submits this report to the General Meeting
of Shareholders for consideration and approval,

Sincer

ely.rl.

Reciplents: ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

- As above;

- Note: Board of Supervisors,
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SOMADEZI CORFORATION SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
DONGNAI PAINT CORPORATION Independence - Freedom — Happiness

TS e e e L

No: 04/2025/TTe-HDQT Dong Nai, April 18, 2025

PROPOSAL
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS 2025
VI TERM MEETING {2025-2030)

Resarding: Profit distribution, fund allocation, and dividend payment for 2024

- Pursuant 1o the Enterprise Law: 59/2020/QH14 dated 1706/2020 issued by the

Mational Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam.
- Based on the audited business results and financial statements of 2024,

The Board of Directors submits to the General Meeting of Shareholders for
caonsideration and approval the profit distribution, fund allocation, amd dividend payment
for 2024 as follows:

Mo. Itemus :’:.‘: Amount (VNI
I | Charter capital - 30.364. 360,000
11 | Business Results 2024
| | Met revenue from sales &nd SErvice provision. 119.647.971,540
5 Profit after tax for allocation to funds and | g 440 048 307
dividend payment |
[11 | Total allocation to funds | 3 B78.477,772
1 Development investment fund 25% 2,212,487.077
2 | Reward fund 8% 707,995 865
3 | Welfare fund 5% 442,497,415
4 | Social - community activities fund 2% 176,998,966
"5 | Management Board bonus 2% 176,998,966
6 | Management Board bonus (Employees) 1% LY 45'9?531
Bonus for the Board of Directors & Member
T | of the Board of Supervisors s TR
1V | Remaining profit after fund allocation 4,971,470,535
v Remaining profit from 2023 carried 8.811,172.806
forward
VI | Total remaining profit (IV+V) 13,782,643,341
VIl | Dividends 18% 5,465,584,800
'ﬁﬂ'If]_wﬁemainiug profit carried forward to 2025 8,317,058,541

Respectfully submitted to the General Meetin, _f::lr consideration and approval.







SOMNADEZI CORPORATION SOCIALIST REFUBLIC OF VIETNAM

DONGNAI PAINT CORPORATION Independence - Freedom - Happiness
No: 082025/ TTr-HPOQT Dong Nai, April 182023
PROPOSAL

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS 20325
VI TERM MEETING (2025-2030)

Regarding: Profit distribution, fund allecation, and dividend payment in 2025

- Pursuant to the Enterprise Law: 59/2020/0H14 dated June 17, 2020 1ssued by
The MNational Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam.

- Pursuant to the 2025 business Production Plan.

The Board of Directors submits to the General Meeting of Shareholders for
cemsideration and approval the profit distribution, fund allocation, and dividend payment
in 2025 as follows:

| Mo Indicator % Plan [ Amaunt (VND)
1 Charter capital 30, 364,360,000
[T | Business results
1 Profit before tax 9,500,000,000
2 | Profin after tax (Corporate income tax 20%) 7,600,000, 000
I | Total funds allocated 3.268,000,000
1 Development myestment fund 23% 1,900,000,000 |
2 | Reward fund E%% &08,000,000
3 | Welfare fund 5% 380,000,000
4 | Social - Community fund I 152,000,000
5 | Management Board banus g 152 000,000
6 | Management Board bonus (Employees) 1% 76,000,000
IV | Remaining profit after fond allocation 4,332, 000,000
V | Remaining profit from 2024 carried forward 8,317,058,541
V1 | Total remaining profit (IV+V) 12,649,058 541
Y11 | Dividends 15% 4,554 654,000
VIII | Remaining profit carried forward to 2026 8,094 ,404,541 |

Propose to the General Meeting of Shareholders to reward the Board of Directors,
Board of Supervisors, Person in charge of Corporate Governance and Information
Disclosure Officer $%/profit before tax exceeding the plan and deducted from profit after
tax.

Respectfully submirted to the General Meeging for consideration and approval.







SONADEZ] CORPORATION SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

DONGNAT PAINT CORPORATION Independence - Freedom - Happiness
No: 0672025/ TTe-HPOQT Dong MNai, April 18, 2025
PROPOSAL

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS 2025
GENERAL MEETING TERM VT (2025-2030)

Regarding: Selection of Auditing Company
to audit the 2025 Financial Statements

- Pursuant to the Enterprise Law: 59/2020/Q0H 14 dated June 17, 2020 issued by The

National Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam.

- Pursuant to the audit requirements for the 2025 Financial Statements of DongNai
Paint Corporation.

The Board of Directors submits to the General Meeting of Sharcholders for
consideration and authorizes the Board of Directors to decide on the selection of an audit
unit for the 2025 Financial Statements.

The Board of Directors would like to introduce the following 3 audit companies:

1/- RSM VIETNAM AUDITING & CONSULTING COMPANY LIMITED.
2/- AFC VIETNAM AUDITING COMPANY LIMITED.
3~ A&C AUDITING AND CONSULTING COMPANY LIMITED.

Respectfully submitted to the General Meeting for consideration and approval by
VOLE,
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PROPOSAL
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS 2025
VI TERM MEETING (2025-2030)

Regarding: Amending and supplementing the Company Charter, the Regulations on
Corporate Governance, the Regulations on Operation of the Board of Directors.

- Pursuant to the Law on Securities No. 34/2019/0H14 dated November 26, 2019,
amended and supplemented by Law No. 56/2024/QH13 dated November 29, 2019,

- Pursuant to the Enterprise Law No, 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020, amended
and supplemented by Law No. 03/2022/QH15 dated January 11, 2022;

- Pursuant to the Charter of DongNai Paint Corporation, amended and
supplemented on September 28, 2023

- Pursuant to the Regulations on Corporate Governance, dated April 26, 2021,

- Pursuant to the Regulations on Operation of the Board of Directors, dated April
27,2022,

After reviewing the Company Charter, the Regulations on Corporate Governance,
and the Regulations ors Operation of the Board of Directors for practical applicability, the
Board of Directors submits to the General Mecting of Shareholders for consideration and
approval of amendments and supplements to certain contents of the Company Charter,
the Regulations on Corporate Governance, and the Regulations on Operation of the Board
of Directors as follows:

1. Company Charter.

Amended and Supplemented | Implementation
b Charter Basis
Article 1: Interpretation of Terms. | Article 1: Interpretation of Terms.
1. In this Charter, the following terms | 1. In this Charer, the following
shall be construed as follows: terms shall be constroed s follows:
i ; b. "Enterprise Law™ means the
b. "Entorprise Law" means the :
: : Enterprise Law Mo. 59/2020/QH14
fn:ﬁmc 11_;,&";&2]:33 H0QH dated June 17, 2020, amended and | For practical
i ' supplemented by  Law  No. | applicability.
03/2022/0H15 dated January 11,
2022




Current Charter

Amended and Supplemented
Charter

Implementation
Basis

¢. "Securities Law" means the Law on
Securities No. 54°20190H14 dated
November 26, 2019;

c. "Securities Law™ means the
Securities Law No. 54/2019/QH 14
dated November 26, 2019, apended
and supplemented by Law No.
S62024/0H15 dated November 219,
2019,

For practical
applicability.

Article 20. Conditions for the
Resolution of the General Meeting
of Shareholders to be Passed.

1. Resolutions of the General Meeting
of Shareholders on the following
matiers shall be passed if at least 65%
of the total votes of all shareholders
attending the meeting are in favor.

3. Except for the cases specified in
Clauses 1 and 2 of this Article,
resolutions of the General Meeting of
Shareholders on other matters shall be
passed when more than 50% of the
total wvotes of all shareholders
attending the meeting are in favor.

Article 20. Conditions for the
Resolution of the General Meeting
of Shareholders to be passed.

l. Resohutions on the following
contents are passed if approved by
shareholders representing at least
65% of the total voting shares of aff
sharelholders atiending and voting
af the meeting.

3, Except for the cases specified in
Clauses 1, 2 of this Article,
resolutions of the General Meeting
of Sharcholders on other matters
will be passed when approved by
moee than 50% of the total voting
shares of all sharcholders aitending
and voting af the meeting.

Amended
pursuant o
Clause 5, Article
7 of Law No.
03/2022/QHI1 5
dated January
11, 20cd2,




Current Charter

Amended and Supplemented
Charter

Implementation
Basis

Article 29. Meeting of the Board of
Directors.

6, Meeting notices of the Board of
Dircctors can be sent by paper,
telephone, fax, electronic means and
ensure delivery to the contact address
of each Member of the Board of
Directors registered at the Company.

Article 29, Meeting of the Board of
Directors.

6. Meeting notices of the Board of
Directors can be sent by paper
invitation, phone message, email,
Sfax, or other electronic means,
ensuring delivery 1o the contact
address of each Member of the
Board of Directors registered at the

Company.

Fer practical
purposes.

Article 57, Internal

Hesolution.

Dispute

..........................................................

2. If a mediation decision 13 not
reached within six weeks from the
starl of the mediation process or if the
mediator's decision is not accepted by
the parties, any party may bring the
dispute to the Economic Arbitrator or
Economic Court.

3. The parties shall bear ther own
costs related to the negotiation and
mediation procedures. Courl costs
will be borne by the party decided by
the Court.

Article 37, Internal

Resolution.

Dispute

2. If a mediation decision 15 not
reached within six weeks from the
start of the mediation process, orif
the mediator's decision 15 not

may bring the dispute w0 Ffe
competent Court.

costs related to the negotiation and

i according to the Courr's ruling.

accepted by the parties, any party |

3. The parties shall bear their own |

mediation procedures, Payment af |
Court costs shall be executed -

For practical
PUFPOSEs.

2. Regulations on Corporate Governance.

s

Current Regulation.

Regulation.

Implementation
Hasis.

Article 3. Nomination, Candidacy, |
Election, Dismissal, and Removal of |

Members of the Board of Directors.

3. Method of electing Members of the |

Board of Directors:

a. The list of candidates for the Board of

Diirectors must be approved by the
of  Shareholders

General  Meating
before the election,

| Article 3. Nomination,
Candidacy, Election, Dismissal,

| and Removal of Members of the
Board of Directors.

3. Method of electing Members of
the Board of Directors.

Remove paint a.

To comply with
the  Enterprise
Law.

Article 5. Nomination, Candidacy,

Election, Dismissal, and Removal of
of

Members of the DBoard

Supervisors,

3. Method of clecting Members of the

Board of Supervisors:

Article 5. Nomination,
Candidacy, Election, Dismissal,
and Removal of Members of the
Board of Supervisors.

3. Method of electing Members of
| the Board of Supervisors:

For compliance
with the
Enterprise Law

3




| 2. The list of candidates for the Board of |
Supervisors must be approved by the
General Meeting of Shareholders

before the election.

' Remove point a.

3. Regulations on Operation

of the Board of Directors.

Current regulations

Amended and supplemented

Implementation

trutlifulness of the content af the
mifhetes af the Board af Directors
meefing. The chairperson and the
minute-taker shall be personally
finbie for any domage caused fo
the enterprise due to their refusal
fo sign the minutes as prescribed
by this Laow, the company's
charter, and relevant laws.

Jointly liable for the accuracy and

regulations basis

Artiele 15, Minutes of the Board of | Article 15. Minutes of the Board

Directors meeting. of Directors meeting,

2. In the event that the chairpersom or the | 2. In the event that the chairperson

minute-taker refuses o sign the minutes | or the minute-taker refuses to sign

of the meeting, but if all other members | the minutes of the meeting, but if

of the Board of Directors attending the | all other members of the Board of

meeting sign and the mimees have full | Directors attending and agreeing to

content as prescribed in points a, b, e, d, | approve the minutes sign, and the

dd, e, g, and h of Clause ] of this Article, | minutes have full content as

then these minutes are valid. preseribed in points a, b, ¢, d, dd, e, | Amended
g, and h of Clanse | of this Article, | pursuant to
then these minutes are valid, The | Clause 6, Article
minutes shall clearly state that the | 7 of Law No,
chairpersen or the minute-taker | 03/2022/QH1 35
refuses to sign the minufes. The | dated  January
signatory of the minures shail be | 11, 2022,

Respectfully submitied to the General Meeting of Shareholders for consideration

and approval.




SONADEZI CORPORATION SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF YIETNAM

DONGNAL PAINT CORPORATION Independence - Freedom - Happiness
No: (82025 TT-HRQT Dong Nai, April 18, 2025
PROPOSAL

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS 2025
VI TERM MEETING (2025-2030)
Regarding: Settlement of salaries and bonuses of the Board of Directors, Board of
Supervisors, Person in charge of corporate governance, and person in charge
information disclosure in 2024

- Pursuant to the Enterprise Law: 592020/QH14 dated 1706/2020 1s5ued by the
Mational Assembly of Sacialist Republic of Vietnam.

- Pursuant to the Charter of DongMNai Paint Corporation amended and
supplemented on 28/09/2021,

- Pursuant to the Resolution of the Anmoal General Meeting of Shareholders on
1070472024,

The Board of Directors submits to the General Meeting of Shareholders for
consideration and approval the settlement of salaries and bonuses for 2024 as follows:

1. Salaries and bonuses of the Board of Directors, Board of Supervisors, Person in
charge of corporate governance, and person in charge information disclosure.

TT | Cuntep_! - - Amount (VIND)
1 | Board of Directors 639,464,000
2 | Board of Supervisors 243,984,000
E P!;-.rsnn in charge of Corporate Governance + Information 76,488,000

discloser
Total 959,936,000

2. Bonuses of the Board of Directors, Board of Supervisors, Person in charge of
corporate governance, and person in charge information disclosure are 5%/FBT
exceeding the plan.

- PBT plan 2024 VND 2,685,000,000
- Actual PBT result 2024 VWND 11,156,440,413
- Profit exceeding the plan VNI 1,47],440,413

- Allocation of 5%/profit exceeding the plan VI 73,000,000
Fespectfully submitted to the Geperal Meeting for consideration, decision, and

approval by vote.
FDIRECTORS
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SONADEZI CORPORATION SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
DONGNAI PAINT CORPORATION Independence - Freedom — Happiness

No: 0972025 TTe-HBOQT Dong Nai, April 18, 2025

PROPOSAL
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS 2025
VI TERM MEETING (2025-2030)

Regarding: Remuneration and bonus for the Board of Directors, Board of Supervisors, Ferson in
charge of Corporate Governance, Person in charge of Information Disclosure in 2025

- Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises; 59/2020/0H14 dated JTune 17, 2020 issued by
the National Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam.

- Pursuant to the Charter of DongMai Faint Corporation, amended and
supplemented on November 28, 2023,

1. The Board of Directors submits to the General Meeting of Shareholders for
eonsideration and approval the remuneration levels for 2025 as follows:

- Board of Directors’ remuneration,
+ chairman of BOD: 7,000,000 YNDYmonth
+ Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors : 6,500,000 VINLYmonth
+ Board of Directors members ; 6,000,000 VINDYmonth
- Remuneration of the Board of Supervisors:
+ Head of Board of Supervisars: 6,000,000 VND/month
+ Member of Board of Supervisors: 3,000,000 VND/month
- Person in charge of Corporate Governance's remuneration: 2,000,000 VND/month
Person in charge of Informetion Dhsclosure's remuneration: 2,500,000 VNDY/month

{This is the actual remuneration paid, personal income tax is deducted before this
amount and the Company directly pays to the tax authority. The application period starts
from 01/2025 and continues untif the General Meeting of Shareholders decides to change

).

2. To motivate and encourage the Board of Directors, Board of Supervisors, Person
in charge of Corporate Governance, and Person in charge of Information Disclosure in
directing production and business activities to exceed the set plan. Propose to the General
Meeting of Shareholders an additional 5% of the profit before tax exceeding the plan and
deducted from the profit afier tax.

Implementation: Assign the Board of Directors to determine the remuneration and
bonus levels for each member of the Board of Directors, Board of Supervisors, Person in
charge of Corporate Governanee, and Person in charge of Information Disclosure,

Respectfully submit to the General MEE fer-camsideration and approval
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SONADEZI CORPORATION SOCTALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

DONGNAI PAINT CORPORATION Independence - Freedom — Happiness
No: 02/2025/QC-HBQT Dang Nai, April 18, 2023
ELECTION REGULATIONS

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS - BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

The clection of the Board of Directors (BoD)} and the Board of Supervisors (Bos)
at the General Meeting of Shareholders shall be conducted in accordance with the
following regulations:

1. The Chairman of the General Meeting is responsible for presiding over this
election, with the following specific tasks:

- Establish a list of nominees and candidates for the BoD and Bos.

- Supervise the voting and vote counting.

- Check and announce the election results,

- Resolve complaints about the election (if any).

2. Election principles.

- In accordance with the law and the charter, direct and secret ballot.

- Voting rights are caleulated based on the number of shares owned or represented.
Election results are caleulated based on the number of voting shares of
shareholders/sharcholder representatives attending the meeting.

3. Criteria for selecting members of the BoD and BoS.

3.1. Criteria and conditions for BoD members:

a. Not subject to the provisions of Clause 2, Article 17 of the Enterprises Law;
b. Not be a family member of?
- Managers, Member of the Board of Supervisors of the parent company;
- Managers, Member of the Board of Supervisors of the Company,
- Representatives of the State capital at the parent comypany;
- Representatives of the parent company’s capital at the Company.

c. Have professional qualifications and experience in business administration or in
the Company's business field, industry, or prefession, and not necessarily be a shareholder
of the Company;

d. Only be a member of the Board of Directors at a maximum of 05 other companies;

3.2, Criteria and conditions for independent BoD members: In addition to meeting
the criteria and conditions specified in Section 3.1 above, independent members of the
Board of Directors must meet the following criteria and conditions:

a. Not be & person currently working for the company, not be a person who has
worked for the company for a1 least 03 consecutive years prior.




b. Not be a person receiving salary or remuneration from the company, except for
allowances that members of the Board of Directors are entitled to according to regulations;

c. Mot be a person whose spouse, biological father, adoptive father, biological
mother, adoptive mother, biological child, adopted child, brother, sister are major
shareholders of the company; are managers of the company or the company's subsidiaries;

d. Mot directly or indirectly own at least |% of the total voting shares of the
Company,

. Mot be a person who has been a member of the Board of Directors or Board of
Supervisors of the company for at least 03 consecutive years prior, unless appointed for 02
consecutive terms.

3.3, Criteria and conditions for BoS members:

a. Mot subject to the provisions of Clause 2, Article 17 of the Enterprises Law;

b. Be trained in one of the majors in economics, finance, accounting, auditing, law.
business administration or a major suitable for the business activities of the enterprise;

¢. Must not be a family member of:

- Member of the Board of Directors, General Director, and other managers of the
parent company;

- Member of the Board of Directors, General Director, and other managers of the
Company;

- Representative of the State capital at the parent company,

- Representative of the parent company's capital at the Compamy

d. Must not be 2 company manager; not necessarily a sharcholder or employes of
the company,

e. Must not work in the company’'s accounting or finance department;

f. Must not be a member or employee of the independent awdit firm that audited the
company's financial statements in the three (03) vears immediately preceding,

4. Principles of nomination and candidacy for the Board of Directors and the Board
of Supervisors.

Shareholders have the right to nominate others or self-nominate for the position of
Member of the Board of Directors, Member of the Board of Supervisors il they meet the
following conditions:

4.1, Shareholders have the right to combine voting rights 10 nominate Board of
Directors candidates. A shareholder or group of shareholders holding from 10% to less
than 30% may nominate one member; from 30% (o less than 50%, two members; from
30% o less than 65%, three members; and 65% or more, the full number of candidates.

4.2. Shareholders have the right to combine voting rights 1o nominate candidates for
the Board of Supervisors. A shareholder or group of shareholders holding from L0% to less

than 25% of the total voting shares may nominate one (01) candidate; from 25% to less
than 50%, a maximum of two (02) candidates; and from 50%: or more, a maximum of three

{03) candidates.

4.3. The Organizing Committee is responsible for verifying the walidity of the
shareholder or group of sharehalders owning the number of ordinary shares stated in points

4.1 and 4.2.



4.4, The Chairman is responsible for collecting basic information abou! the
candidates, reviewing the list before the election (fo ensure no vielation of laws and
regulations), and introducing the candidates to the shareholders so they have a basis for
selection.

5. A shareholder representative may only use one hallot corresponding to the
number of shares owned or represented.

6. The Vote Counting Committee is nominated by the Chaimman and approved by
the General Meeting. Members of the Ballot Counting Commitice must not be on the
nomination list or be candidates for the Board of Directors or the Board of Supervisors.

7. Election method:

7.1. Establish the ballot list.

7.2. Pre-printed ballots with the names of those on the ballot list, bearing the
Company's seal in the upper left corner.

7.3, Valid ballor: Issued by the Election Committes, with the full number of votes
c&st (no names crossed out). -

7.4, Invalid ballot:

seal.

list.
- Sharehalders using more than their total number of ballots.

- Shareholders voting by "%" of ballots.

8 Ballot counting: Conducted in a scparate room under the supervision of
shareholder representatives.

8. The Ballot Counting Committee is responsible for preparing the ballot ecunting
minutes, announcing the results, and, together with the Presidium, resolving sharehoiders'
questions and complaints, if any.

10, All shareholders have the right to question the General Mecting about jssues
related to this election if they believe there are signs of violation of laws and regulations.

11, Approval of the General Meeting's electjon rggulations
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SONADEZI CORPORATION SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

DONGNAT PAINT CORPORATION Independence - Freedom — Happiness
Mo 012025/ TL-HBQT Dong Nai, April 18, 2025
ELECTION PROCEDURE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS, BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

- Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises: 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020 issued by
the Mational Assembly of the Socialist Kepublic of Vietnam,

- Pursuant to the Charter of DongNai Paint Corporation amended and supplemented
on 28/09/2023.

The procedures and process for electing the Board of Directors (BoD) member,
Board of Supervisors (BoS) for term W1 (2025-2030) of DongNai Paint Corporation arc as
follows:

1. Content of the election:

- Election of the Board of Directors members @ 5 people
- Election of the Board of Supervisors Member  : 3 people

1. Election method: Cumulative voting, direct and public.

- Pursuant to Clause 3, Article 148 of the Law on Enterprises 2020, which stipulates:

“The wvoting 1o elect members of the Board of Directors and the Board of
Supervisors must be conducted by cumuolative voting, whereby each sharcholder has a total
number of votes corresponding to the total number of shares owned multiplied by the
number of members 10 be elected to the Board of Directors or the Board of Supervisors,
and the sharcholder has the right to cast all or part of their total votes for one or several
candidates.”

* Accordingly, the election of A (B) BoD, BoS members will be conducted ag
follows:

- Total votes of a shareholder = Total number of shares owned by the
shareholder x A (B) [where A (B) is the number of members elected to the Bol}, BoS].

- Shareholders can use their total votes to vote for the candidates listed in the
candidate list. Shareholders who suppor! 2 candidate will fill in the number of votes or
allocate their total votes in the blank box in the "Number of votes for the candidate”
column corresponding to each candidate.

- Shareholders are only entitied to cast cumulative votes for candidates within the
seope of their total votes, meaning that the total mamber of votes for the candidates must
be less than or egual 1o the tota] votes of that shareholder.

- Recopmized resulis:

- Pursuant to Clause 3, Article 148 of the Law on Enterprizes 2020, which stipulates:

Elected members of the Board of Directors or Supervisors arc determined by the
number of votes from highest 1o lowest, starting from the candidate with the highest
number of votes unti] the number of members prescribed in the Company’s Charter is
reached. In the event that two or more candidaies recejve the same number of votes for the

1



last member of the Board of Directors or the Board of Supervisors, a re-election will be
held among the candidates with the same number of votes.

3, Election Ballot:
- Ballot form
+ BoD, BoS ballots are stamped with the red seal of DongNai Paint
Corporation.
- Ballot content:

+ Shareholder code, Name of sharcholder/representative, total number of votes
enfitled.

+ Candidate's Mame - Number of votes for the candidate.
Note:
- ¥alid ballots are ballots in the following cases:
+ The total number of votes for the candidates 15 less than or equal to the total
number of votes of the sharcholder
4 Cast votes for one or more people.
- Invalid ballots are ballots in the following cases:
+ Ballots not issued by the Organizing Commitiee and without the company's
red seal.
+ Ballots that are crossed out, comected, altered, or have additional names
written in outside the provided list.
+ Ballots exceeding the number of people to be elected.
+ Sharcholders using more than their total number of vates.
+ Sharsholders voting by "%" of shares.
- Ballot replacement request:
In case of errors during the voting process, shareholders can comact the Vote
Counting Committee for guidance and a replacement ballor.

ON BEHALEGRFTEORGANIZING +t:1|::r1'ur!nrn'r1'E1:p’k




SONADEZI CORPORATION SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF YIETNAM
DOMNGNAL FPAINT CORPORATION [ndependence - Freedom — Happiness

No: 1120825 TTr-HBQT Dong Nai, April 18, 2023

PROPOSAL

Discuss and approve the contents of the General Meeting of
Shareholders

- Pursuant to the Enterprise Law: 5%/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020 issued by the
Mational Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam.
- Pursuant to the Charter of Orgamzation and Operation of DongNai Paint Corporation,
amended and supplemented on September 28, 2023,
- Based on the 2024 financial statements of Dongnai Paint Corporation andited by R3M
Vietnam Awditing and Consulting Company Limited.
The Board of Directors submits fo the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Sharehalders
= W1 Term (2025-2030) to conswder and approve the following contents.
Content 1: Report on production and business activilies, management and administration in
2024 and the 2025 Production and Business Plan of the Board of Management.

Content 2: Report summarizing activities in 2024 - Orientation for 2023 and Results of term
V (2020-2025) - Orientation for term V1 (2025-2030) of the Board of Directors,

Content 3; Audited financial statements for 2024.

Content 4: Report of the Board of Supervisors evaluating the management and
administration of the Board of Directors and the Board of Management in 2024
- Assessment of the Company's production and busmess activities and the
activities of the Board of Supervisors for term V (2020-2025).

Content 5: Proposal on profit distribution, fund allocation, and dividend payment for 2024

Coutent 6: Proposal on profit distribution, fund allocation, and dividend payment for 2025,

Content 7: Proposal on the selection of an audit unit for the 2025 financial statements.

Content 8: Proposal on amendments and supplements to the Company's Charter, internal
regulations on corporate governance, and regufations on the operation of the
Board of Directors.

Content 9: Progiosz] on the settlement of salaries and bonuses for the Board of Directors,
Board of Supervisors, Person in charge of Corporate Govemance, and
information disclosure officer in 2024,

Content 10: Proposal on the level of salaries and bonuses for the Board of Directors, Board
of Supervisors, Person in charge of Corporate Govemance, and information
disclosure officer in 2025.

Content 11: Proposal on the dismissal of members of the Board of Directors, members of
the Board of Supervisors for the term ¥ (2020-2025} and the nomination of
personnel for election to the Board of Directors and Board of Supervisors for the
term VI (2025-2030).



Respectfully request the Geneéral Meeting of Shareholders to consider the above
issues and authorize the Board of Directors to implement the issues and policies approved
by the General Meeting.

FDIRECTORS




=R ONADLEZ CORPORATION SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
; NAL PAINT CORPORATION Independence — Freedom — Happiness

1072025/ 1T Tr-HDQT Deng Nai, April 18, 2025

PROPOSAL
1025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
TERM VI (2025.2030)

Re: Dismissal of the Board of Directors Member,
the Board of Supervisors Member for term V (2020-2025)

Introduction of candidates for eleetion to the Board af Directors
and Board of Supervisors for term V1 (2025-2030)

Pursuant to the Charter of Dong Nai Paint Corporate, 2025 is the year ending ol term ¥V
(2020-2025) of the Board of Directors and Board ol Supervisors. At the 2025 annual meeting
of sharcholders, 85 members of Board of Directors and 03 members of Board of Supervisors
of term WV (2020-2025) will be dismissed and elections will be held for 05 members of Board
af Directors and 03 members of Board of Supervisors of term V1 {(2025-20303,

I. Dismissal of members of the Board of Directors for ferm V(2020 - 2025):

1. Mr. Neuyen Pham Thuyen - Chairman of the Board of [rectors

2. Mr. Nguven Due Nhien - Viee Chairman of the Board of Directors

3. Mr. Dao Dinh De - Member of Board of Dhirectors

4, Mr, Tran Trung Kien - Member ol Board ol Directors

5, Ms. Meuyen Vu Thi Hanh - Member of Board of Directors

I1. Dismissal of members of the Board of Supervisors for term V(2024 - 2023):
|, Ms. Dang Le Bich Phuong - Head of the Board ol Supervisors,

2. Ms. Trinh Thi Ngoe Huong - Member of the Board of Supervisors.

1. Ms. Bui Thi Thuy Lien - Member of the Board of Supervisors,

1L Flection of members of the Board of Directors and Board of Supervisors for
term VI (2025-2030):

To prepare for the personnel work for the election at the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholder- term VI (2025-2030) in accordance with the provisions of law. The Hioard of
Directors issued notice 15/2025TB-HPCQT on March 22, 2023, regarding the nomination and
self-nomination of candidates [or election to the Board of Directors, Board of Supervisors of
the term V1 (2023-2030),



The Board of Directors has veceived 05 applications introducing nominations o the Board of
Directors and 03 applications introducing nominations o the Board ol Superyisors,

|. The application introducing nominations to the Board of Directors includes 05 candidates:

a. Mr. Dao Dinh De

b. Ms. Vu Neguyen Thi Hanh

¢, Mr. Nguyen Duc Nhien

d. Ms. Dau Khanh Phuong

d. Mr. Npaven Pham Thuyen

(There is an attaehed curricwlum vitae of 03 candidares, arranged in alphabetical order)
2. The application introducing nominations (o the Board ol Supervisors includes 03
candidates:

a. Ms. Neuyen Thi Chung

b, Ms. Trinh Thi Npoe Huong

¢. Ms, Bui Thi Thuy Lien

(There is an atiached curviculion vitae af 13 candidates, arranged in alphabetical order),

Based on the applications that have been nominated and sell=nominated, the above
candidates are fully qualified to be elected to the Board of Divectors and Board ol Supervisors
of Dong Nai Corporation for term V1 (2025-2030).

Pursuant to Clause 5, Article 25 ol the Company's Charter stipulates thal among the
members of the Board of Directors there must be 1 independent member, Comparing the
applications For nomination and recomumendation of 5 candidates for election o the Board of
Dircctors for this term does not meet the standards and conditions for being an independent
member of the Board of Directors.

We respectlully request the General Meeting of Sharchelders 1o eleet 05 members of 1he
Company's Board of Directors for term VI (2025-2030) and there are no independent members
of the Board of Directors

Respectiully submit Tor the General Meeting of Sharcholders to consider and vole Tor
approval.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
CHAIRMAN

MNpuyen Pham Thuyen

s T MoS
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